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STRATEGIC REPORT

for the year ended 31 March 2021

The Directors present their Sirategic Report on the Laing
O'Rourke Pic Group ('laing O'Rourke’ or 'Group'j for the
year ended 31 March 2021.

REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS
The Group's principal activities are:

CONSTRUCTION

Programme management:
- Consitruction and building;
- Civilengineefing; and
- infrastructure and support services.

MANUFACTURING
- Buiding preducts; and

- Manufacturing construction products.

PLANT HIRE
—~  Plant hire and operaticns.

SERVICES
- Design services:

- Building operations management; and

—  Property development.

A flist of all subsidiaries, joint ventures and joint arangements
can be found in note 34 10 the financial statements.

Laing O’Rourke Pic (the 'Campany'} is a wholly owned
subsidiary of G'Rourke Investments Limited and o member of
the Lcing O'Rourke Corporation Limited Group. The Company
is incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the financial yaar ended 31 March 2021 (FY21), the
Group made continued progress towards delivery of its
strategic targets having achieved a profit before tax of £4.9m
{FY20: £10.5m).

The key achievermnents can be summarsed os follows:

- The Group generated a significant net cash improvement
of £72.3m and finished the year with net cash of £946.9m
(FY20: £24.6m) primarily due to a decrease in contract
ossets of £14.3m and an increase In contract liabilifies of
£54.9m;

- The statutory earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) has
decreased by 18% to £24.7m (FY20: £30.1m) which is
mainly due to areduction in volumes during the first half of
the year; and

- The core debt was repaid and refinanced on 4 October
2021, with a new unsecured Revolving Credit Facility
{'RCF') for £35.0m put in place, with an expiry date of 3
October 2023.

At the year end the Group had an order book of £6.2bn [FY20;
£6.4bn} which represents ¢ four year's revenue {order book is
defined as the volue of work cutstanding on secured,
anticipated and preferred bidder contracts). Our key focus has
been on converting our pipeline to secured work, which stood
at £4.5bn at the year end (FY20: £3.5bn). This remains a priority
for the remainder of FY22. In FY21, underlying performance was
dgain impacted by anincrease In costs relafing fo Covid-19.
four major projects — all in canstrained city centre locations —
were suspended as a result of the pandemic but only one site
was significantly impacted by potentially irecoverabie Covid-
19 costs. This was largely due to ¢ regionally mandated
extended shut down period af the start of the pandemic and
high levels of required isclation periods in FY21. This led to an
increase in costs recognised on the project of £14.1m.

The Group's share of cumuiative losses in Canada relating fo
the censtruction of the CHUM hospital increased marginalty by
£5.5m to £214.0m. The project is nearing completion and the
Group is not expecting any further losses. The haspital has been
operational since October 2017 and the Group's only role in
the project now consists of respanding to any residual
obligations on Phase 1 and monitoring ifs interface obligations
inrespect of Phase 2 which achieved substantial completion
on 16 April 2021 (delivered by afocal coniractor).

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
The Group did not incur external costs in relation to restructuring
losses duning the year (FY20: £2.4mj}.

The Group did not recegnise any losses on liquidation of
subsidiiaries during the year (FY20: £3.9m).

CoviD-19

During the year the Group received grant income of £2.5m
from the UK Government's Coronavirus Job Retention scheme
in order to support the business through the UK's national
lockdown during the first four months of FY21. This has been
netted against the related emplovee expense presented in
administrative expenses. As an emergency measure at the
beginning of the Covid-19 pandemic, stoff also tock a
veluntary pay cut between 1 April and 31 July 2020 ranging
from 20-30% depending on their pay grade. Al UK staff
returned to full pay from 1 August 2020.
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STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2021

FUNDING

The Group's net cash position (cash less debt but excluding
bank arangement fees ond the impact of adopting IFRS 14)
increased from £24.6m at 31 March 2020 to £96.9m at 31 March
2021. This increase was driven by a decrease in contract assets
and an increase in contract abifties (see note 18],

The Group operates exiensive confrols over working capital
and cash management with proactive engagement of its
financial stakeholders.

The Group has complied with all banking covenants during
the year and has not required any waivers or relaxation of its
covenants throughout the impact of Covid-19 to the date of
signing of thesc accounts.

As well as debt instruments. such as bank loans and overdrafts,
the Group uses project related bonding and guarantees to
support its activities. They are largely issued by insurance
companies but alse by other financial institutions. These bonds
are issued on behalf of contractors to their clients and provide
compensation in certain circumstances, such as defined
aspects of contracter under performance. They can also be
used to underwrite client aavances and relaxation of client
retentions.

These instruments convey significant rights 1o the issuers similar
fo those conveyed to other financial institutions, e.g. fees,
covenants, reporting reguirements and ranking in the event
of financial distress.

Qver the last five years the Group has sought to reduce its use
of these instfruments.

The Group does not employ supplier payment facilities.

The core debt was repaid and refinanced on 4 October 2021,
with @ new unsecured Revolving Credit Facility (‘RCF') for
£35.0m put in place, with an expiry date of 3 October 2023.

UK FUNDING
UK CORE DEBT:

£'m Termn
RCF/Tem Debt 108.7 3year
Property loan 13.7 3vyears

The core debt shown akove had an expiry date of
31 Gecember 2021.

Since 2016, the Group has been targeting o reductionin its
gross bark debt, supported by improved trading results and
careful cash management. The Group repaid £50.3m of
RCF/Term debt durng FY21 and on 4 Cctober 2021, the Group
fully repaid its remaining RCF/Term Debt facility (including
Amangement fees) which was due to expire on 31 December
2021. On the same day, the Group signed an agreement for a
new unsecured RCF with HSBC for £35.0m. The new facility hos
an expiry date of 3 October 2023. This new facility incentivises
or pendlises Laing O'Rourke depending on its progress against
key sustainability metrcs: reducing carbon intensity, diverting
waste from landfill, and growing the number of women in
project delivery.

In addition to core bormowing arangements, the UK business
utilises lease funding facilities to support the acquisition of plant
and equipment.

In the UK, bending and similar insfruments have continued to
reduce by £3m o £92m ot 31 March 2021. The UK business has
reduced ifs exposure by approximately 40% since 2018, Since
the year end, bank guarantees have reduced by a further
£17.3m to £22.5m due to a £22.2m step-down in the CTHUM
position offset by a £4.9m increase due to the switching of a
bond to a bank guarantee in respect of CHUM.

UK BONDS AND GUARANTEES

FY21 FY20 FY1% Frig

(Em) 1Em}) 1£m]) {&m}
Surety Exposure 52 55 84 108
Bank Exposure 40 40 44 45

ASSET DISPCSALS

Cn 28 May 2020 Laing O'Rourke Plc sold 5,000 shares cut of a
total holding of 7,000 shares in ifs joint venture Yorkshire Leaming
Partnership Limited for £7.0m. On 6 October 2020 Laing
O'Rourke Plc sold the remaining 2,000 shares for £2.8m.

FINANCE AND TREASURY POLICY

The Group's freasury function has continued to prudently
manage the Group's liquidity, funding and financial risks arising
from movemenls in areas such as inferest rates and foreign
cumency exchange rates. The Group has not entered into
foreign curency hedges. The Group continues tc review its
credit support reguirement and prioritise the management of
key financial stakehciders. including key banking relationships
and surety bonding providers whe suppart cur long-term
strategic agenda.
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STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2021

UK CONSTRUCTION WORKING CAPITAL AND SUPPLY
CHAIN PAYMENTS

The UK business confinues to target improvements in its supplier
payments and is fully engaged with cument discussions
regarding payment practices.

Since the end of the last recession access to traditional bank
funding by fier one and subconiractors alike has reduced due
to aloss of appetite for the sector by UK banks. Refiance on
off-balance sheet support has also become tighter due to a
reduction in the attractiveness and the avaiiability of bonding
and guaraniee facilities.

Tier one cash flow is particularly sensifive to the length of fime
taken fo agree and settle changes and variations, the
qguantum of and duration over which cash retention is held by
clients, and the reluctance of clients to pay for the significant
cost and fisk of mobilising a major project and the offsite
manufacture of components.

All parties invelved in the sector musf collaborafe to provide a
more modern appraach to payments and providing adequate
working capital to avoid the curent "hand fo mouth' Trickle
down of liquidity.

In terms of payment data, the UK businesses reparted their sixth
set of payments practice data on 30 April 2021, for the six
months 1o 31 March 2021.

Since Aprit 2018 significant progress has been made in reducing
average payment days and increasing the percentage of
invoices paid to terms or within 60 days. During the 18 months
fo 31 March 2021 the Group’s performance has remained
stable. There is still progress to be made by the Group in
achieving payment to all suppliers within terms. The UK's Prompt
Payment Code {'PPC'} also announced in January 2021 that
companies will be obliged to pay small businesses within 30
days. which is half the previous 40 days.

Laing O'Rourke became a signatory of the UK's Prompt
Payment Code in 2013 and remains committed to improving its
payments performance.

The graphs opposite shaw Laing O'Rourke Canstruction
Limited's payment performance for the three years fo 31
March 2021, Laing O'Rourke Construction is the main frading
enfity in the UK, a wholly owned subsiciary of Laing C'Rourke
plc, and is the main entity subject to the PPC.

The first graph shows how average payment days have
reduced since April 2018 and remained relatively stable since
Cctober 2019. The second graph shows the improving
percentage of invoices paid within 40 days. The third graph
shows improving performance of payments made within temns.

Graph One: Average days

I

T

Graph Two: All suppliers and subcontractors, % invoices paid

under 40 days

S :

P0% 0% 73R

Graph Three: All suppliers and subcontractors, % invoices

paid o terms

8% 55%
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STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2021

RISK AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group's risk management framework and processes are
largely unchanged from FY20. Since the year end, however,
greater focus is being placed upon developing and
enhancing our risk management framework and the work of
the Risk and Internal Audit function, paricularly in seeking 10
identify issues across all operational phases of delivery. The
Board continuously assesses and maonitors risks affecting the
Group, Further details of how the Group has managed key
financial and operational risks, such as credit and liquidity risks,
are set out on pages 37 to 46 of the Laing O'Rourke
Corpoeration Limited Annual Report and Consclidated Financial
Statements under 'Risk Management’,

IMPACT OF BREXIT

To date, there has been no material negative impact of Brexit
on cument live projects. input price inflation and materia
shortages have begun to affect sites but their impact is being
carefully managed via confractual terms and longstanding
supply chain relationships. Current challenges with staff
recruitment and attrition and unexpected inflationary pressures
in areas such as fuel and deliveries ta site are largely mitigated
through our direct delivery integrated model and direct
employment. These risks, together with inflation risk, are
considered to be confainabie within existing project
contingencies and will be menitored closely going forward.

The Board will confinue to monitor the potential impact of Brexit
and inflation on the UK busingss environment and remains
vigilant regerding the need to respond to changes in market
conditions such os freedom of movement, right to work,
finance and tanff implications, disruption to supply of plant and
equipment and key construction components, exchange rates
and primary commeodity prices as a result of the agreement.

OUTLOOK

The Group has been impacted by the effects of Covid-19
during FY21 and delays caused during the first four months of
the financiai year have largely been mitigated through
considered and decisive management actions.

Management has however remained focused on
strengthening the foundation of the business through
continuing to embed new processes and controls on project
selection, operationai delvery, and risk and assurance.

Our 2022 forecast and the longer-tem delivery of our 'Deliver
2025 mission is predicated on confinuing to win sufficient
opportunities within our pipeline, the continued implementation
of our successful business model and strategic workstrecms and
the abiiity to contain the impact of any further delays cor
disruption to the supply chain within existing project
contingencies.

whilst the impacts of Covid-19 have become clearer and are,
for the most part in the UK, behind us, the fullimpact of the
combination of Covid-1% and Brexit is stil yet fo be seen.
However, the Board remain confident that the strategic plan
can be delivered. This has been explained in our going
concern note on pages 1?2 to 21 and the impact of cimate
change cn our forecasts and future performance has been
explained in note 2.25 (d} on page 40.

The Board remains confident in the resilience of the business
and its leadership due to its proven frack record against a
chalienging market backdrop.

The UK Govemment has lifted remaining legal restrictions
relating to Covid-19 preventative measures which should
enable our sites to run even more efficiently going forward.
However, while restrictions were lifted during July and August
2021, we will continue to proceed with caution and our Covid-
19 safe measures will remain in place on cur sites and in our
offices for as long as we deem it necessary, and in compliance
with Constructicn Leadership Council {'CLC') guidance.

The Group contfinues to invest in developing a sector-leading
capabilty in madern methods of construction. Our integraled
delvery modei, strong client engagement and robust internal
confrol environment ensure that we are well positioned to
confinue o win waork, The Group also continues 1o work closely
with the UK Government as a strategic supplier in order 1o
deliver much needed hospitals, schools and infrastructure in
support of their investment agenda, The Group has continued
to convert ifs strong pipeline throughout the Covid-19
pandemic and continued conversion of this pipeline is the
Board's main pricrty for the remainder of the cumrent

financial year.

The Group now has 100% of its expected FY22 revenue either
secured or anticipoted and 76% of its expected FY23 revenue is
at the secured, anticipated or preferred bidder stage.

The refinancing of UK core debt that was due to expire on 31
December 2021 was completed on 4 October 2021 and now
has an expiry date of 3 Cctober 2023

As aresult, the Board has considerad the Group's financial
requirernents, based on curmrent commitments and its secured
order book, as well as the latest projections of future
opportunities, against ifs banking and surety bonding
amrangements, and hos concluded that the Group s well
placed to manage its business risks and meet its financiai
targets successfully.
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STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2021

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

SECTION 172 (1) STATEMENT

This section serves as our Section 172 statement in compliance
with the Companies Act 2006, Section 172 of the Companies
Actrequires the direciors o have regard to the interests of our
wider stakehclders when making key decisions across a range
of areas. This statement, together with the relevant sections of
the Annual Report and Financial Statements, explains how our
Board meets this requirement and ako how stakehoider
engagement influences decision making across the Group.

CORPQRATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

During the yeor ended 31 March 2021, the UK enfifies within

the Laing O'Rourke group of companies applied the Wates
Corporate Governance Principles for Large Companies, s
published in December 2018 (the ‘Wates Principles'). We
reperted against the Wates Principies for the first time in the
financial year ended 31 March 2020 and the continuance of
this reporting assisfs with an assessment of what has been done
well and where there remains opportunity for further
improvement of our corporate govemance framework. it is also
recognised that governance requirements and needs will
evolve over time. Our ambition continues to be the
achievement of best-in-class corporate governance across the
Group.

Laing O’'Rourke Pic sifs within the Corporate Governance
Framework of the overall Laing O'Rowke Comardtion Groun.
Decisions that impact Laing O’Rourke Pic are made at both
the Europe Hub Commitiee and Group Executive Committes
levels. The structure of our Board and its committees is outined

below and on page 8. The directors of Laing O'Rourke Plc are
members of the Europe Hub Committee and/or the Group
Executive Committea. All references o the Board, ihe
Company and the Group within this Corporate Governance
Section, on pages 7 to 18, relate 10 the Laing O'Rourke
Corporation Group. Whilst the majority of this Corporate
Govemance section is equivalent o the disclosures in the Laing
O'Rourke Corporation Limited Annual Report and
Consolidated Financial Statements, there are some sections
which have been remaved because they are not relevant to
the Group {ie sections specific to Ausiralial and some sections
which have been tailored or added in order to meet the
requirements ¢f the Section 172 (1) Staternent. The sections that
nave been tailored to the Group cre:

-~  Fnancial performance
- Lleadership and People
- Stakeholder Engagement

GROUP CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

Al loing ORowrke, pride is taken in what hos aready been
achieved. Our Group Govemnance Framewark continues to be
applied across our global business and was reviewed dunng
FY21 in line with our annual review cycle.

We take the view that good corporate governance is ¢
comerstone to the creation of a successful business and one
that generates value for wider society. As it did for the financicl
yeor ended 3) March 2020, the Board has decided fo confinue
to report voluntarly against the Wates Principles at a Group
level in order to promote transparency and accountability.

LAING O'ROURKE CORPORATION LIMITED BOARD STRUCTURE

Board of Directors

i i

Group Execytive Committes Audit and Risk Committes

Europe Hub
Executive Committee

Reruneration, Nomination and
Governance Comimittee

T ]
Group Sustainability

A Committee

Australia Hub
Executive Committes

Inclusion and Wellbeing
Commities
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STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2021

LAING O'ROURKE CORPORATION DIRECTORS

Sir John Parker GBE FREng - Group Chairman

Sir John Parker, Chairman at Laing O'Rourke, has built up an
enviable reputation across a range of indusinal sectors as a
leader in the boardroom, including Chairman at six FISE100
companies. Sir John also chairs the Remuneration, Nomination
and Governance Committee and the Finance Committee.

A former President of the Royal Academy of Engineering and a
visiting Fellow at Oxford University, he takes o keen interest in
the development of enginesring technology and talent, a
core value of Laing O'Rourke’s global business.,

Des QO'Rourke - Group Deputy Chairman

Sharehalder ond co-founding diractor of the Laing O'Rourke
Group, Des provides Board level support to the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer in the operational management of
the Group's business activities. Des is also a member of the
Group Executive Committee and the Europe Hub Executive
Committee.

Des has a proven frack record in project delivery, mobilising
large teams of pecple onto complex projects around the
world.

Ray O'Rourke KBE — Group Chief Executive Officer
Shareholder and co-founding director of the Laing O'Rourke
Group, Ray chairs the Group Executive Committee and is
responsible for leading the strategic direction and operaticnal
maragement of the Group's business activities, Ray also chairs
the Australicc Hub Exacutive Committee, Europe Hub Executive
Committee, the Inciusion and Welibeing Committee andis a
member of the Finance Committee and Remuneration,
Nomination and Governance Committee.

Ray founded R C'Rourke & Sonin 1977 and commenced
trading the following year. The business acquired the
construction arm of John Laing pic in 2001, and with the
acquisifion of Barclay Mowlem in 2006, created today's
extended infernational engineering construction group. Ray
has a passion for develeping and promoting engineering and
project delvery talent fo meet global construction challenges
and has a keen focus on safety performance.,

Rowan Baker - Group Chief Financial Officer

Rowan joined Laing O'Rourke in September 2020 as the
Group's Chief Financial Officer (‘CFO’). Rowan is ako a
member of the Group Executive Committee, the Finance
Committee, the Australia Hub Executive Committee and the
Europe Hub Executive Committee.

An experienced finance executive, Rowan joined Laing
O'Rourke from McCarthy & Stone plc, where she held the role
of Chief Anancial Cfficer and played a key role in the
company's successful IPO in 2015, Prior to joining McCarthy &
Stone in 2012, she worked in finance for Barclays Bank ple and
professional services for PwC. Rawan has o master's degree in
Law from Cambridge University and is a qualified accountant
(FCA) ond chartered fax adviser,

Greg Branch — Non-Executive Director

Greg joined the Board as an independent Non-Executive
Director in September 2018. Greg also chairs the Audit and Risk
Committee and is @ member of the Finance Committee.

Previously, Greg was a Senior Partner at Deloitte LLP and built
Deloitte Offshore over 27 years into a highly successful business.
Key skills include succession planning, strategic planning,
finance, audit and corporate governance. Greg has
significant experience in working closely with Audit Committees
of isted companies and large private cempanies.

Seamus French — Non-Executive Director

Seamus joined the Board as an independent Non-Executive
Director in May 2020. Seamus is alse a memibber of the Finance
Committee.

Searmus joined Anglo American in 2007, acted as CEO of
Anglo America’s bulk commodities business and in his curent
role is responsible for the Group's coal, iron ore and nickel
businesses. He also sits on their Group Management
Committee. Before joining Anglo American, he worked in a
range of chemical and resources businesses, including as
Globxai Vice President and o member of the Executive
Committee at BHP Bilifon.

Charlotte Valeur - Non-Executive Director

Charlotte was appointed fo the Board as an independent
Non-Execufive Director in March 2018, Charlotte has more than
30 years’ expenence in the financial industry and has held a
range of executive and non-executive directorships in listed
organisations, including Kennedy Wilson Europe Real Estate Ple,
3i infrastructure Plc, Blackstone/GSO Loan Financing Ltd, DW
Catalyst Fund Ltd, NTR Plc, Renewable Energy Generation Lid
and JPMorgan Convertibles inceme Fund Lid. In addition fo
her role on the Board, Charlotte is @ member of the Laing
O'Rourke Audit and Risk Committee, the Remuneration,
Nomination and Governance Committee and the Finance
Committee.

Jim Edmondson — Group Company Secretary

Jim joined the Group in January 2018, He is a solicitor of the
Supreme Court of Englond and Wales and a former joint senior
partner of a magjor Londoen faw firm with respensibilities for
strategy, thought leadership, nurtuning of client relaticnships
and business development. Jim ako specialised in advising on
corporate structures, succession planning and the application
of proper administration and corporate governance in the
context of directorships and trusteeships.
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STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2021

KEY MATTERS CONSIDERED BY THE BOARD OF LAING O'ROURKE CORPORATION LIMITED
DURING THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 INCLUDED:

TOPIC/ACTIVITY ACTIONS _ EREGRE_SL o _

STRATEGY AND Supported development of a new Approval to aopoint sustainability ‘ambassadaors’

SUSTAINABILITY sustainability strategy for the Group, throughout the business to support appeintment of a
incorporating environrmenial and diversity new Group Head of Sustainatbility.

performance targets to support current

ambitions to achieve operational net zero

emissions by 2030 and 50/50 staff gender

balance by 2033. Requirement for project teams 10 reflect the cornmunity
in which they operate.

investrment in R&D and modern methads of construction
to support low carbon products.

Careful moniforing by the Board to maintain a redlistic
view of progress towards environmenta! and diversity
targets. Details on the KPis which have been approved
by the Board and against which progress wil be
measured are outlined on pages 47 to 4% of the Laing
O'Rourke Corporation Limited Annual Repeort and
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Considered and approved ¢ new responsible Work in both Hubss to embed responsible decision-

decision-making ('RDM'} framework for the making (RDM] in ali aspects of business.

Group as a key enabler for our transformation

sirategy to deliver cur ‘Deliver 2025' mission.

FANANCIAL  Evaluated the UK business' performance Detaied reports to each Board meeting from Group
PERFORMANCE against budget and forecast. Chief Financial Officer and Group Commercial Director.

Details an the KPls which have been approved by the
Boord and against which progress will be megasured are
outlined on pages 47 to 49 of the Laing O'Rourke
Corporalion Limited Annual Report and Consolidoted
Financial Statements.

ECJﬁyirespoirlsiegihé%lleing-esi?r_es'ﬁé&b*y' -_Progij_me of fre(i@nt Board and finance sub
the operational impact of the Covid-19 commifttee meetings; in the UK, use of furlough and
pandemic. HMRC 'time to pay’ schemes and self-help salary

reductions and strict discipline on overhead and cash
coilection. The business was well placed to benefit from
work on a new operating medel, technical excellence,
offsite manufacture and careful governance of the bid
process. Positive decisicn not to seek further UK
Government support.

Didlogue with the UK Government assisted in establishing
credentials in the context of education, health and
infrastructure investment intended to support economic
recovery post-pandemic.,
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STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2021

LEADERSHIP Recognition that people are our most

AND PEOPLE valuable asset, which was given particular
resonance by the impact of the Covid-19
pandermic.

Considered successfioﬁrpianning for senicr
roles.

Considered '| ijp_osé 'from anindividual
leadership perspective.

Focus on Wellbeing, with offer of professional
financial advice, participation in Mental
Health Awareness Week and work towards
rccognition as u Disubilily Confident leader.
Reviewed Executive Development
Prograomme, a two year inifiative involving
some 30 executives. The purpose is to enable
each executive o review persenal progress
aside from everyday tasks, and to enable the
business to arive at an chjective analysis of
bench strength in order to inform succession
planning.

RISK MANAGEMENT Established special attenfion forums

AND INTERNAL responsible for racking and reporting

CONTROLS identification and management of risks arising
directly from Covid-19 pandemic and Brexit.

"~ Good response 1o financial wellbeing support package

with development of additional workshcps. Emergence
from furlough scheme with 0% of UK employees back at
work by June 2020.

Succession planning confinuing o evolve underthe
stewardship of Group Chairman Sir John Parker.

T Executive inifiatives around aeﬁr{ing what ‘purposeful

leadership' locks ke as the business starts to consider
defining its overall ‘purpose’.

Cocchin§ FECJWG&éTOpT(&dGST} resource for project
leaders.

Excelent executive angagement assisted by professional
coaching in core areas of purposeful leadership and
high performance.

Regular repdrTirTg 1o the Board by Legal and commercial
functions.

Approval of the appointment of a new Head of Risk and
Internal Audit, reporting directly to the Non-Executive
chair of the Group's Audit and Risk Committee.

Approval of ‘Project Certainty’, a
development of the Group's project
operating model which places projects and
people at the heart of the business and is
central to the ‘Deliver 2025 Missicn'.

STAKEHOLDER Client feedback via Perception Study

ENGAGEMENT designed to increase understanding of client
objectives measured by reference to key
themes including people, diversity,
sustainability, innovation and technical
expertise.

Involvement in *Kickstart Scheme’, a UK
Govemment initiative designed 1o create work
placements for young pecpie either at risk of
long-term unemployment or unable fo find @
job after graduation.

Regular reporting by Board members who

lead our Building and Infrastructure businesses
intc weekly Business Plan Review meetings and
monthly meetings of cur Europe Hub BExecutive
Committee.

" Enables ‘real fime’ reporfina on client diologuie, o

Introduction of ‘Project Certainty’ on a number of major
new projects.

A focus oninclusion and wellbeing and an approach
called 'Engineered Safety’ as central to the way in
which the Group goes to wark.

Client Perception Study results showed a clear emphasis
on need for trust and collaborative relationshio with ‘'no
surprises’ and the importance of our diversity and
sustainability aspirations.

" Complements cur 'Guns' development programme
which aims to identify, nurfure and retain emerging
talent within the business.

workforce feedback, supply chain relationships and any
stakeholder concerns.
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STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2021

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The structure of the Corporate Govemnance Statement follows
that of the Wates Principles. Each of the Wates Principles has
been considered individually and in the confext of Laing
O'Rourke's operations.

PRINCIPLE ONE
PURPOSE AND LEADERSHIP

As an engineerng and construction group. Laing C'Rourke is
commifted fo playing a vital role in building stronger and more
sustainable communities and contributing to economic
growth. The Group is committed to the development of o
culture based on what is described as *Excellence Pius’
performance.

Al the heart of the business is the ambition to become the
recognised leader forinnovation and excellence in the
construction industry — achigved by means of a strategy based
on the values of the founding shareholders, who remain the
two sharehoiders of the Group foday and continue to inform ifs
direction. These aims are clear, poweriul, and relevant to the
business challenges of foday and tomorow and form a
compeling guide to the goals of the Group and how they will
be achieved.

The Group's strotegy is implemenied through our 'Deliver 2025
Mission’, further details of which are set out on pages ¢ and 10
of the Laing O'Rouwrke Corporation Limited Annual Report and
Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Board appreciates the importance of engagement and
dialogue with its employees and wider stakeholders fo
communicate the Group's strategy, governance and culfure.
Details of how and why we engage are set out on page 16 to
18 in our reporting against Principle Six (Stakeholder
Relationships and Engagement) of the Wates Principles.

The Board has spent time during the financial year considering
‘purpose’ from an individual leadership perspective, sefting
executive initiatives around defining what *purposeful
leadership’ looks like qs the business now starts to considler
defining ifs overall ‘purpose’. The Board is conscious of a need
to share and embed the Group's ‘purpose’ and to use it fo
help drive long-term and sustainable success.

CONDUCT AND ETHICS

The Board sets and leads ehavicurs and culture o support the
delivery of the strategy. There is a formal process for the Board
to manage and approve conflicts of interest within the director
group and directors are required to inform the Board of any
actuai or potential conflicts of interest which may anse with
their other professional or personal interests.

The Board has approved the Group's Code of Conduct. which
sets out behavicurs acceptable to Laing ©'Rourke. The Code
of Conduct defines Laing O'Rourke's commitment 1o operating
globally in accordance with ethical standards and the
behaviours that are expected of employees. supply chain
partners and other stakeholders. The dim is to go beyond
minimal compliance. The Code of Conduct, ‘Doing the Right
Thing', can be found on the Group's website.

We have contfinued o develop our Group ethics and
complicnce programme, conducting a comprehensive
complionce conirols review in March 2021. Compliance
improvements in the period focussed on strengthening the
conirols embedded in our supplier onboarding and third party

due dilgence procedures and developing further the Group's
madem siavery controls and how we can best incorporate
meaningful KPIs info cur compliance programme to better
assess our progress in fackling modem slavery risks.

HIGHLIGHTS:
—  Extended the UK third party due diigence process fo
include sovrces of funding for client projects — July 2020

- Sfrengthened the UK due diigence compliance controls
within the supplier onbeoarding process — September 2020

- Updated the Group and UK sModern Slavery Statement —
October 2020

- Established a Group Modemn Slavery Sub-Commitiee ~
February 2021

—  Reviewed the Europe Hub Compiliance Committee
performance effectiveness - February 2021

—  Refreshed Eurcpe Hub population of compliance
champions - February 2021

- Reviewed and assessed Group compliance controls ~
March 2021

~  Provided modem slavery fraining to UK site-based office
managers - March 2021

PRINCIPLE TWO
LAING O'ROURKE CORPORATION LIMITED -
BOARD COMPOSITION

In addition to four Executive Directars, four independent Non-
Executive Directors are appointed to the Board. They help the
Board to maintain objectivity and bring expernence from
different perspectives and challenge from outside the sectors in
which the business operates.

The Board is led by Sir John Parker, independent Non-Executive
Director, as Chairman of the Group. The Board further
comprises the Chief Executive Officer {with a clearly defined
role, separate 1o that of the Chairman), the Deputy Chairman,
Chief Finance Cfficer. three further independent Non-Executive
Directors and the Group Comparny Secretary.

The size and composition of the Board is considered to be
appropncate for a business of this size and complexity.
appropriate for the Group's strategic needs, chalienges of the
crgonisaficn and effective decision making.

The Board delegates the day to day operation of the Group
through a structure of executive committees (see page 7).
which regularly report info the Board and provide clarity on the
Group's business needs. The Group's shareholders are Board
members, enabling a full understanding of shareholder
interests.

The Audit and Risk Committee and the inciusion and Wellbeing
Committee are chaired by Non-Executive Directors in order to
ensure independent challenge and influence across the broad
range of issues for which these committees are responsible. The
Board Chairman and the committee chairs promate cpen
debate and facilitate constructive discussions. The Chairman,
via the Group Company Secretary. is responsicle for ensuring
that directors receive the apprepriate tevel of information in
board papers sufficiently in advance of meetings fo facilitate
such discussions.
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STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2021

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

The role of the Audit and Risk Committee is te monitor the
integnty of the Group's financial statements, to oversee the
relaticnship with the extemal auditor including a review of
independence and fees and ta review the system of intemal
financial controks, reporting and management. For the
purposes of the FY2ZT audif, the Committee met four times in
order to review infernal controls. draft financial statements, the
information supplied by management on significant
accounting judgments and all detail supporting the
confirmation of going concern.

THE INCLUSION AND WELLBEING COMMITTEE

This Commiittee is charged by the Board with oversight of the
snfety ond wellbeing of all our peaple, inCluding Ihe
commitment to diversity and inclusion referred to below. With
implementation of Project Certainty, the Group has developed
a new appreach which identifies the safety of our pecple as
the highest value of the business, achieved through Inclusion
and Wellbeing, the application of Engineered Safety to
‘engineer cut’ risk, modem methods of construction involving
digital technology and offsite manufacture and an emphasis
on human performance through leadership and capacity.

Board members have equal voting rights when making
decisions. The specific modus ¢herandi of the Board s set out in
the Company's Articles of Association, a copy of which can be
reguested from the Group Company Secretary. Al directors
have equal access to the Group Company Secretary and may
take professional advice if desired at the Group's expense,

The Group is confident that the Board has the right skills and
expenence to discharge its duties effectively. Tne directors are
clear on the amount of time required for their role and are
careful fo balance this with the reguirements of otherroles (see
biographies on page 8).

While the Board calendar was impacted in the year by the
Covid-19 pandemic, the Beard aims to schedule regular visits
to major projects and directors are free to request such
information as they may wish on any aspect of the Group's
operations. The Group provides formal training for directors and
has a clear commitment to professional development. The
Chaiman undertakes a programme of discussion and
evaluation with each member of the Board outside the forum
of formal meetings.

This evaluation includes o focus upon succession, which is
under regular review both at Board and operational level and
is of particulor relevance to the drive for transformation over
the course of the Group's business plan to 2025. The Group has
implemented an execufive development programme across
both the Europe and Australic Hubs, with specialist ccaching
supported by the feam at Global Futures designed 1o idenfify
and address development goais.

The Board acknowledges a relative lack of diversity in ifs
membership which is a common challenge across the
engineering and construction sectors. Laing O'Rourke
confinues its aspiration to increase diversity across the business.
Details of how the Group is pursuing that aspiration are set out
below,

DIVERSITY

Our commitment to becoming a recognised leader of
inncvation and excellence within the construction industry has
meant that the year has seen a number of advancementsin
ariving diversity and creating an inclusive culture. We continue
to make the link between high performing teams and diversity
and psychological safety.

The Board is committed o ensunng thot the Group is free of
discrimination and that all employees and other stakeholders
are respected and treated fairly, We have continued to
embed training and develop skils both ensuring that leading
teams are free from harassment and discrimination and by
waorking in respectful ways through our Code of Conduct, our
People policy and various fraining modules across our
European and Australian Hulbs.

DIVERSITY — CASE STUDY

Our hubs have driven develepment and delivery of
strategies to ensure that we meet the commitments
oultlined in our Diversity, Equity and Inciusion Statement and
that we respond to the issues raised in diversity and
inclusion surveys conducted the previous year.

Our Europe Hub has established several sub-committees
focused on diversity issues, each with a senior sponscr,
which allows any employee to contribute fo the learming
and decision making around diversity issues which are of
interest to them. The groups have increased in
participafion and engagement throughout the year.
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STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2021

PRINCIPLE THREE
DIRECTOR RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board has approved a Group Governance Framework
which was reviewed during the period and which sets out the
responsibifies and accountabilities allocated to the Board and
its committees. This forms the basis of the Board induction
process for a new director. Other training is provided Qs
identified during a director's tenure.

The Group Governance Frarmewaork provides a clear
understanding of roles and respaonsibilities, finking fo policies
and procedures and delegations of authority, supporting
effective decision making and independent challenge. in tum
delivering long-term value to the Group and to stakeholders.
Governance processes are reviewed on d regular and
ongoing basis as part of the Group's commitment to corporate
gavernance outlined in the opening paragraphs of this report
onpage 7.

The Board delegates day-to-day management of the Group to
the Group Executive Committee and Executive Commitiees in
each of ifs Hubs report directly into the Group Executive
Committee. The Board further delegates detailled and specific
matters to the other committees mentioned whose role it is to
consider specific issues of relevance to Group governance and
to recommend a course of action to the Board. The Board
retains ulimate responsibility for any final decisions.

The Nen-Executive Directors are wholly independent and have
no material business or other reiationships with the Group which
might influence theirindependence, judgement or decisions.
The Board believes that the relationship between the company
and its shareholders works well and that the Non-Executive
Directors can fuifi their roles in an independent and
constructive manner. Non-Executive Directors act as chairs of
the Board and other key committees.

Directors are aware of their statutory and ethical duties in
relation to potential conflicts of interest which may compromise
obiecilive decision-making. If an actual or potential contlict of
interest arises, the Board (or one of its Executive Committees)
will manage the matter as appropiiate. The existence of an
actual or potential conflict of interest may be highlighted by a
director or the Company Secretary. Depending on the
circumstances, any conflicted director may be asked to
apstain from confnbuting fo the discussion or vafing.

At a subsidiory level. appointments fo the boards of operating
subsidiary companies are reviewed and aligned with
membership of the Group Executive and Hub Committees and
the business unit and functional leadership structure. Business
Unif Leaders are at the heart of operations, enabling direct
engagement with the relevant business unit employees and
other stakeholders such as clients.

All directors and Business Unit Leaders receive meeting papers
and information through a secure digital portal managed by
the company secretariat. Board and committee papers and
supporting information are expected to be timely, accurate,
clear. comprehensive and up to date, with a clear indication
of what is requested of each recipient.

PRINCIPLE FOUR
OPPORTUNITY AND RISK

The Board aversees a confinuous assessment of nsks affecting
the Group and has in place the necessary aversight
procedures for the identification and effective mitigation of risk.
Set out below are some of the key controls and procedures
that form part of the framewaork for management of the
Group's principal risks identified on pages 3% fo 44 of the Laing
O'Rourke Caorporation Limited Annual Report and
Consclidated Financial Statements under 'Risk Management'.

Following review of the Group's nsk and compliance
programme, regular reporting te the Board across arange of
compliance requirements and risk appetites has been
formalised through the Group and Hub Compliance
Committee structure to continue to strengthen the dialogue
between the Boord ond the Group's executive teoms
responsible for management of risk. We will continue to focus
on improvements to our cornporate risk managerment
framework over the next reporting period. tc ensure that it is
fully 'risk enabled’ to best support the Group in achieving s
strategic objectives.

PROJECT DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY

Strong project gevemance is fundamental fo cur resilience and
certainty - two of the five conditions of our 'Beliver 2025
Mission' outlined on page 9 of the Laing O'Rourke Corporation
Limited Annuai Report and Consolidated Financial Statements
that supports the Group's strategy. The Project Delegation of
Authority is approved by the Board and details the cascade of
authoerisations required for key project related decisions,
including all proiect gateways, project related contracts and
key supply chain approvals vig o risk based oprroach for
decision making. A digital 'fisk calculator' tool helps staff
identify and assess risks and select the right delegation of
authority for the decision. The cim is to maintain absolute
alignment, while reserving autharity at the level of the Board,
Group Executive Committee and Hub Executive Committees
fo consider the highest risk decisions.

Due ta the Covid-19 pandemic, the Australic Hub's review of
the risk-based Project Delegation of Authonty was delayed. The
Australia Hule continues the use of a value and fime-based
delegafion of authority until it is defermined how a similar
appreach could be used.

PROJECT GATEWAYS

Laing O'Rourke relies on a governance framework fo manage
opportunities and risk. provide conirol and maintain an
enduring sustainable enterprise. Formal governance gateways,
coupled with the Project Delegation of Authority, are in place
to provide core controls. There are ten project gateways,
spanning from opportunity identification, bid stage. delivery
and through to final handover. All goteways must be
autherised in accordance with the Project Delegation of
Authaority.

Our Govemnance Committees at Group and Hub levels
continue to regularly review and work onimprovements te the
gateways, ensunng that they are streamlined. standardised
and integrated in day-to-day activities so that govemance
becomes an integrai part of how each person goes fo work.
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STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2021

BID SCTILCMENT MEETINGS:

Bid setflement meetings make sure that the right pecpie are
fogether at the right fime to discuss and reach alignment on all
bids, ensuring that the offers made to clients are risk bakanced
and rebust. Where appropriate, members of the Board and/or
its Executive Committees attend bid settlerment meetings.

iGMS

CuriGMS {integrated Group Management System) outlined on
page 41 of the Laing C'Rourke Corporation Limited Annual
Report and Censolidated Financial Staterments contains Laing
QO'Rourke's enterprise-wide management system, knowledge
and information. This is the repositery for all processes,
procedures, technicalinformation, general infermaticn,
guidance, templates, checklists and learning, which encbles
pecple to be organised for success and provides guidance on
how they should go to work. Key policies and procedures are
opproved or endorsed by the Board and/or its relevant
committees prior to publication iniGMS,

Part of the Group's long-term strategy is to have simple and
seamless structures, processes, systems and tools to enable
smarter working. Through our Transformation agenda - see
page ? of the Laing O'Rourke Corperation Limited Annual
Report and Consclidated Financial Staterments for further
details - the Group is placing greater focus onresilience and
certainty to deliver against promises encompassing quality,
cost and time. To achieve this, it is necessary to embed ¢
behaviour of delivernng what has been promised and
complying with core business processes.

During the period we confinued a Group wide effort to align
processes and procedures to hamess best practice, achieve
consistency in the way allin the business go to work and to
drive continuous improvement. This included:

- theinfroduction of ansk-bbased consistent approach fo our
bid process;

- improved project mobilisation process that will support the
successful establishment of o project in a structured and
censistent manner; and

- detailed review of the procedures, guidance and
templates in both Hubs that support our project gatewarys
to ensure that all content within the IGMS is up to date and
accurate.

DIGITAL

Our digital strategy remains focused on delivering value for our
customers - from the way in which we envisage solutions to
how we operate and deliver value, driving fransparency and
certainty within all cur activities.

During the period we have focused on further developing the
digital and data capabilities within the Group; bringing in the
right skills, developing our people and defining the processes to
deliver against a programme of work fo accelerate our digital
transformation.

Moving forward into FY22, we have recognised the need for a
Group Digital Director [appointed in April 2021} and to have in
piace a talent acquisifion plan, with strong digital and data
capabilities and insights from different indusfries, to drive our
strategic objectives and to deliver customer value through
improved ways of working enabled by digital technologies. We
have attracted talent, like finance, energy generation and
mebile technclogies increasing our overall capacity to create
and mobilise our plans.

In the year, we have also launched cur new Data Academy
to upskill our existing people through a data analyst
apprenticeship programme in partnership with Multiverse. This
apprenticeship is creating deeper organisational capabilities
with the aim of accelerating change through improved data
analysis and delivering exciting and sustainable careers for the
future with a strong emphasis on succession planning.

In March 2021 the Board approved the digital transformation
programme which focuses cur plans on several key initiatives
such as continuing to build our glebal data platform and our
clients and markets analytics both of which are cntical to
evaluating new prospects and to ensuring that cur future
workload aligns with our sfrotegic objectives.

A key focus area for our Technical function is using digital
technologies to deliver the right information, at the right time fo
the right people. This will be achieved through our Design
Partner Framework which was developed throughout 2020 and
ehables our internal and external design teams to deliver an
integrated digital design which ensures that the engineering is
complete and clash free. We are also focusing on establishing
a clear pathway through our Digital Horizons to move from
partial adoption of digital design tools - Horizon 1 - to fully
generative and parametrised design — Hornizon 3 - aligning with
the requirements of modem methods of construction ['MMC').

Digital will enable us fo deliver the targets that underpin our
approach ic MMC by achieving 73:60:30 — 70% of construction
compenents manufactured off site, 60% imprevement in
productivity, and a 30% improvement to the delivery schedule
—and 0:0:0 - zerc incident, zero defects and zero carbon.
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STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2021

PRINCIPLE FIVE
REMUNERATION

The Remuneration, Nomination and Governance Committee,
chaired by an independent Nor-Executive Director, has clearly
defined terms of reference. Its main function is to make
recommendations fo the Board for the Group's remuneration
structure and to align remuneration to the long-term
sustainable success of the Group. Total Directors' remuneration
is disclosed in note 6 to the financial statements.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Remuneration of directors of our subsidiary companies is based
on their paricular management role and responsibilities, rather
than their appointment as a director of a specific legal entlty.
Accordingly, remuneration of these directors is reviewed and
set by the Group Chief Executive or Hulx Managing Director on
behalf of their employing subsidiary, taking info account any
relevant input fram the Remuneration, Nomination and
Governance Committee.

The challenges noted in the Chairman's and Chief Executive's
Statements cornstrained the ability to undertake any general
review of remuneration in the year, Work has, however, been
undertaken on developing the project leader bonus plan (as
noted below) and on the wider question of rewarding
performance throughout the business, the aim being fo
leverage the substantial investment in training and
development, The Group takes the view that rewards based
upon productivity are appropriate for all without differentiation.

GENDER PAY REPORTING

Decisions around pay, promotion and reward are o cnfical
pillar to ensuring we attract and retain high performing
females.

The Group has complied with Gender Pay Gap reporting
requirements in both Hubs and has taken action to ensure thaf
systemic bias is eliminated from our processes and decision
rmaking. Our Board is confident that our people are paid within
the same salkary bands for the same roles. Qur gender pay gap
is driven by the lower representation of women in higher paying
roles.

Qur succession planning, focus on participation of wormen in
development programmes, and targets to incregse
recruitment of women into non-traditional roles, are all
impacting positively cnreducing this gender pay gap and the
Board is confident that while this will take time. progress is being
made. Details of how the Group is pursuing those aspirations
are set out on page 12.

Over the year the outcomes of the Group project leader bonus
plan have been reviewed and gender has been a key
consideration in this redesign. The decision has been made to
increase the number of paricipants in the scheme which wil
provide the opportunity for more women ta parficipate in the
revised plan.

A significant opportunity to enable more women fo reach
senior levels in our business has been throvgh embracing
fiexible and dynamic working madels. Our commitment to
sustainable high performance provides a framework for both
men ond women fa increase their energy and capacity
through working and living in a more sustainalole way. This has
led to many changes in how people on projects work, thereby
making the construction industry a more attractive prospect to
women. This focus and our continued focus on MMC - see
page 10 of the Laing O'Rourke Corporation Limited Annual
Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - all liead the
Graup ¢ have confidence in the abiity to biing more women
into senior roles in the coming years.
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STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2021

k. PRINCIPLE SIX
) STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIPS

AND ENGAGEMENT

The Board collectively — and its directors individually — are clear that relationships with stakeholders are an essential part of the
foundation of the business, Effective and meaningful engagement with stakeholders requires regular dialcgue.

An understanding of stakeholder groups and their interests enables the business 1o take account of their needs and concerns,
allowing for the creation of value for all.

STAKEHOLDER GROUP

OUR CLIENTS

HOW WE ENGAGE

We invest in eary engagement with clients prior
to any formal decision-making processes aiming
to gain insights into their needs, challenges,
expectations and pricnties, as well as
demonstrating the experience and capability of
Laing O'Rourke to strengthen our pasition as a
frusted adviser. We also seek early engagement
with key influencers fo clients including
consultants and industry bodies to ensure they
fully understand our capabilities and offering.

Working with clients in this manner, and
implementing a detailed ‘strategy to win’
planning process, has allowed us to
demonstrate business values around innovation
and excellence and the benefits of ourin-house
capabiities, to strengthen relationships with
clients and to deliver certainty.

The way in which we engage with clients is
strategically planned through this process, with
diversity in engagement activiies such as
capability workshops, site tours, presentations
and events depending on the existing
relationship with the client and the purpose of
engagement.

To address mobility restrictions during the
Covid-19 pandemic, Laing O'Rourke's
engagement portfolio evolved to include virtual
project and factory tours, thought leadership
activities and forums — all of which were held
remotely while encouraging parficipation from
clients. This approach continued to create
opporiunities for collaboration. learning, as well
as a platform to demonstrate capability and
offering during the challenging global
circumstances. Interviews by independent

interviewers continued to take place with clients,

offering a 'live’ source of feedback for how
Laing O'Rourke is performing in the market and
on projects.

HOW THIS STAKEHOLDER GROUP INFLUENCED
BOARD / COMPMITIEE DISCUSSIONS AND DECISIONS

Underpinning the approoch to engagement is the
Board's commitment to continuouws improvement
through consistent preject level feedback across the
project portfolio. During the yeaor a refresh of our 2015
perception study took place to gain insight into the
perspectives held about us from several key stakehclders
including clients. The insights from this study confimed
the value fhat clients see in our approach, while
informing the Board on areas for further refinement in our
offering and identifying the opportunities that underpin a
sustainable pipeline of work across priority sectors.

The Laing O'Rourke 2025 Transformation Agenda
incorperates five conditions (resilience, cercinty, pecple,
next-generation methods and technology. responsible
decision making) fo achieve our strategic objectives
and to become the recognised leader for innovation
and excellence in the construction industry. The priority
conditions for this year endorsed by our Board and
Group Executive Committee included resiience and
certainty, focusing on client engagement, productivity
and digital data.

We updated our client engagement strategy and client
relationship management processes and platforms,
improving our productivity and digital data and
simplifying complex business systems and models to
enable the Board and cur Executive Committees to
consider and guide our engagernent with clients and
influencers throughout the lifecycle of a project, from
pursuit o tender and through to delivery.

Our updated client relationshic management system is a
centralised digital system, providing alignment across the
business and delivering consistent and fransparent
reperting to the Board and our Executive Committees on
arange of issues including ¢lient feedback, key
performance indicators for engagement with clients, our
performance on projects and ‘lessons learned’ to
upcoming opportunities.
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OUR PEOPLE

Connecting effectively with our people duning the yearto
hear and understand their views bbecame more
important than ever as the Covid-19 pandemic spread
across the globe.

The Group prioftised communication, engagement and
support for our workforce through many different
channels including:

- Daily, weekly or monthly empioyee communications
from senior leaders;

- Making toolkits available to monagers to ensure that
they could cascade consistent information to their
teams in a personal way; and

- Increased interactive communication with our
people through extension of cur in-house media
channel ‘LOR Live' to remote platforms, facifitating
real fime Q&As with thoughts and opinions
encouraged from ol staff,

Communication was proactive and inferactive via LOR
Live (monthly live broadcasts by our leadership teams),
our internal social media channel on Yammer, Laing
O’'Rourke's intranet, weekly jownhall sessions across the
business and project visits (where possible} with leadership
briefings. The primary focus was ensuring that all
colleagues were safe on sites and in offices and that their
wellbeing and mental health was being supported in the
face of increased challenges in balancing work and
family environments.

We refreshed our annual staff engagement survey in
Novembper 2020, with strong scores recorded across both
Hubs particulary confidence in leadership, pride in
working for Laing O'Rourke and cverall staff
engagemeant.

OUR SUPPLIERS  In July 2020 more than 150 suppliers affended Laing

OUR LENDERS

O'Rourke’s vitual conference to continue to engage our
UK supply chain on the Group’s 'Deliver 2025' Mission. This
was reinforced by further communications with our supply
chain throughout the Covid-1% pandemic, utilising our
strategic partnerships to collcborate and mitigate the
impact of the pandemic on our projects.

Strategic partnerships with key suppliers are further
supported througn the issue of joint communications,
sharing supply chain best practice and collaborating with
mutual stakeholders. These highlight how partnerships
bring benefits to the delivery of projects and drive
innovation throughout the industry.

The Group operates sirict controls over working capital
and cash management. engaging proactively on these
controls with its lenders. A regular and fransparent
reporting dialogue is maintained with lenders, including
monthly update calls and touch points, visits to projects
and our manufacturing facilities, strategy and general
business updates and reporting against agreed financial
performance metrics.

Managing the scfety of our pecople was the
pricrity for the Board and our Executive
Committees as they managed the business
through the particular challenges of the Covid-1%
pandemic and a key factor faken into account in
all aperctional decisions regarding access to cur
project sites and offices.

The Board and our Executive Commitiees fook a
proactive interest in how the pandemic would
impact aur future ways of working, with staff
surveys across both Hubs asking our people to
share their experiences of working remaotely and
fo consider how their roles could change info the
future. The results of this survey were
overwhelmingly positive around the support
provided o our peaple and their desire for the
business to move towards new ways of flexible
and dynamic working. The Board has endorsed
this approach, with pilot schemes implemented
qacross our project and office environments.

Other initialives considered and endorsed by the
Board and our Executive Committees during the
period included:

- Rollout of the Energy Project {one of the
Group's wellbeing infiatives) across both hubs
with support training;

- Providing support initiatives to help those
waorking from home, raising mental health
concems and caring for dependants; and

- Provision of increased annual leave to
support people bakuncing the challenges of
working from home and the anxiety
associated with the Covid-1% pandemic.

~ The Board reajbnfseisfhﬁfs supply?hofn por?érs

will be critical in helping the Group achieve its
‘Deliver 2025" mission to become the recognised
leader for innovation and excellence and
achieve stretching sustainability targets. Members
of the Board and cur Executive Committees
participate in supply chain farums.

Updates on significant activities and
developmenis within our supply chain are
provided fo the Board and our Executive
Committees and taken into account when setting
or approving annual budgets, performance
targets and making long term strategic decisions.

Supplier payment practices are regularly reviewed
and Laing O'Rourke remains a committed
member of the UK's Prompt Payment Code.

~ Allfinancial stakeholders have direct access at ai

times to the Chief Financial Officer, who is
appeinted to the Board and attends meetings of
the Exacutive Committees, This ensures that the
directors and our senior leaders are kept regularty
informed of developments with our financial
stakeholders and that their views are taken
properly into account when making operational
and strategic decisions.
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STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2021

OUR
COMMUNIY

At aproject level, we engage with a wide range of local

stakehclders to keep them informed of our local initiatives
and progress on projects, which deliver significant
economic and social value to local communities.

We use a wide range of communication channeis
{including social media) fo maximise the effectiveneass of
how we engage with the local community across our
projects.

GOVERNMENT
AND
REGULATORY
BODIES

Through our trade bodies, the UK's Construction Lecdershi;; o

Council {"CLC'"} and Build UK. we are party to regular
dialogue with officials at the Department for Business,
Encrgy and Inclustial Shuleyy.

During the financial year, this dialogue was focused on
navigating the Covid-19 pandemic, ensuring construction
activity continued safely and supported national
economic recovery. We also maintained dialogue with
ceniral UK government departments responsibie for
delivery of specific infrastructure projects, including the
Department of Health and Secial Care {'DHSC’) for
hospitals and the Department for Education ('DfE'} for
schools.

We are committed te developing and maintaining open
and effective working relationships with regulatory bodies
relevant to our business. Where appropriote, these
relationships are mancged by senicr leaders in our

~ The Board approved the implementation across

both hubs of ¢ responsible decision-making
framework. This is our ethical framework
underpinned by universal principles of
sustainability that helps our Board, Executive
Committees and our pecple consider our values,
principles and other external factors when
making complex decisions.

Cur regular dialogue with government and
requictory badies ensures that the Board and our
Executive Committees are briefed an the
potential impact of significant develepments on
govemment policy, procurement routes and
changes to laws and regulations.

executive team.

RISK

The Directors of Laing C'Rourke Corperation Limited manage
risk for the Group as a whole, rather than for individual entities.
For this reason, the Company’s Directors believe that analysis
of the Laing O'Rourke Plc Group's risks should be viewed in
the context of the Laing C'Rourke Corporation Limited Group.
The principal risks and uncertainties of the Laing QO'Rourke
Corperation Limited Group, which include those of the Laing
O'Rourke Plc Group, are discussed in the Laing O'Rourke
Corporation Limited Group's annual review which does not
form part of this report.

The Directors of Laing O'Rourke Corporation Limited manage
the Group's eperaticns on a divisional basis. For this reason,

the Company’s Directors believe that analysis using key
performance indicators should be viewed in the context of the
Laing C'Rourke Corporation Limited Group. The performance,
paosition and future development of the Europe Hub of the
Laing O'Rourke Corporation Limited Group, which

include those of the Laing O'Rourke Plc Group, are

discussed in the Laing O'Rourke Corporation Limited

Groug's annual review which does not form part of this

report. Copies of the Laing O'Rourke Corporation Limited
consolidated fingncial statements are available ot

www laingorourke.com/company/governance/annual-report.

APPROVAL
This report was approved by the Board on 2 November 2023
and signed on behalf of the Beard by:

)

e

R E TURNER
COMPANY SECRETARY
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

for the year ended 31 March 2021

BRANCHES OUTSIDE THE UK
As the Group is an international business, there are activities
operated through branches in certain junsdictions.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
Detuails on future developments are presented within the
Strategic Report on page 3 to 18.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Directors of Laing O'Rourke Carporation Limited manage
financial risks for that Group as a whele, rather than as
individual entities. For this reason, the Company's Directors
believe that analysis of the Company's nsks should be viewed
in context of the Laing O'Rourke Corporation Limited Group.
The principal risks and uncertainties of Laing O'Rourke
Corporation Limited, which include those of the Company,
are discussed in the Loing O'Rourke Corpoeration Limited
annual review, which does not form part of this repor.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The resulfs for the financial year are set out in the Consolidated
Income Statement on page 24.

Revenue for the financial year was £1,515.4m {2020
£1,651.9m}. The profit after tax for the year was £1.0m {2020:
£7.6m). Capital employed by the Group at 31 March 2021
was o deficit of £180.3m (2020: deficit of £179.3m).

No dividends were declared or paid (2020: £nil).

GOING CONCERN

The Laing O'Rourke Plc Group (the ‘Group') delivered o solid
perormance in FY21 dunng a challenging yecr and
performed materiaily in line with FY20. The ability of the Group
fc confinue as a going concern is dependent on the
performance of the wider Laing O'Rourke Corporation Limited
Group. The Laing ©'Rourke Corporation Limited Group's (the
'LOR Corporation Group') transformation plan is progressing
well and the LOR Corporation Group remains on track to
achieve its 'Deliver 2025 srategic targets.

The LOR Corporation Group has maintained a strong liquidity
position throughout FY21 as a result of decisive management
actions and support from initiatives in response o the Covid-19
pandemic, inciuding tax deferals and the coronavirus job
retention scheme.

The overall impact of Covid-19, which predeminantly affected
the UK, was substantfially mitigated by the {ollowing:

- Termporary voluntary salary reductions {ranging from 20%
to 30%) for all UK staff;

- ¢.1,000 UK salaried staff placed on furlough from 1 April to
31 July 2020;

- Headcount reduction of ¢.150 FTE in the UK;

—  Closure of certain sites in line with UK government
quidelines and at the request of clients;

- Acceleration and/er enhanced scope delivered at key,
naficnally important sites including Royal Liverpool
University Hospital, The Grange University Hospital,
Clatterbridge Cancer Centre, Hinkley Point C Power
Stafion and HS2;

- Swilt reconfiguration of ail sites fo make them Covig-19
compliant;

- Discreticnary spend reduced and removal of non-
essential capital expenditure; and

- Agresment with HMRC for deferrals of cerfain PAYE and
VAT payments in ine with the govermmeni Covid-19

assistance measures (PAYE fully repaid by 31 July 2020
and VAT fully repayable by January 2022).

As aresult of its ongoing profitability and the financial flexibility
achieved via these mitigations, fhe LOR Corperation Group
did not require any waivers or relaxation of its banking
covenants during the financiai year for facilities in place at the
year end. Subsequent to the year end, UK facilities of £108.7m
have been repaid in full. On 4 October 2021, the UK putin
place a new unsecured £35.0m revolving credit facility ('RCF')
with an expiry date of 3 October 2023 and is forecasting full
covenant compliance onits ‘management case’ business
plan and its severe but plausible downside scenario. Details of
covenants are provided in note 27.3 of the financial
statements.

In forming their conclusicn os to the appropriateness of
continuing to appily the going cencern basis of accounting in
preparing these financial statements, the Directors have
reviewed the LOR Comparation Group's 'management case’
forecast, representing management's best estimate of the
future performance of the LOR Carporation Group. including
cash flow forecasts to 31 March 2023. The Directors have ako
considered the way in which the LOR Corporation Group
constantly monitars its cash reserves and exercises fight control
over its working capital as ilustrated by its liquidity
performance during the Covid-19? pandemic.

The RCF, which funds the UK business, permits laans to be
made from the Australia Hub {part of the LOR Corporation
Group) to the UK, and back, subject to certain restrictions
which do not impact management's ability to rmanage UK
liquidity. This allows liguidity to be managed on o LOR
Corporation Group basis and therefore the most relevant
forecast to assess the geing ceoncern basis of accounting for
the LOR Corporation Group os a whole is therefore a LOR
Corporation Group view of liguidity.

The key assumptions and areas of estimation uncertainty
reflected in the LOR Corporation Group ‘'management case’
business plan include:

- Construction activity is assumed to continue in line with
cument levels, with no additional materiat deteroration in
project gross marging or the warking capital positicn, as a
result of further Covid-19 restrictions or for any cother
reason. This approach accords with the LOR Corporation
Group's performance to date against a Covid-19
backdrop;

- There are no adverse material cash settlernents in the
pericd to 31 March 2023 relatfing to the contingent llability
matters disclosed in nofe 27 of fhe Laing O'Rourke
Corporation Limited Annual Report and Consolidated
Financial Statements;

- Work-winning continues in fine with curent expectations
and is in line with average win rates in previous years;

- Confinued support of our supply chain in terms of product
rmateral, labour supply and flexikility in payment temns;

-  Noimposition of a Covid-19 related lockdown on the
construction sector in the LOR Corporation Group's main
markets;

— Inflationary pressures expenenced in the six months to
October 2021 can be accommodated within existing
project inflation allowances and general contingencies.
The LOR Corporation Groun has undertaken a detailed
review of the possible impact of inflation on the estimated
final cost of its projects and has concluded that existing
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cunlingencies are expected to be sufficient to materially
cover the nisk on existing projects in the perod to 31
March 2023, with the risk being addressed at the tender
stage for new projects;

- Based on our detdiled assessment, our supply chain
management and experience fo date, disruption to the
supply of materials to projects and shortagas of labour, if
experienced, can be accommodated within existing
project pregrammes or programme confingencies; and

- The underlying relevant market drivers for construction
work ininfrastructure, power generation, education,
healthcare, justice and residential house bullding remain
inplace.

The Laing ©'Rourke Corporation Limited Board's
‘management case' forecast does not anficipate any
breaches of new banking covenants rekating to the UK RCF
that would result in an Event of Default under the facility in the
pericd to 31 March 2023 and this forecast delivers a
comifortable level of LOR Corporation Group operating cash
iquidity headroom across the same period.

In addition to consideration of the Laing O'Rourke Corporation
Limifed Group ‘'management case' most ikely outcome, the
Directors have dlso considered a number of downside
scenarios in kght of the potentiat uncertainties created by
Covid-19, Brexit and supply chain disruption risk, These
scenarnos have been prepared using cerfain key assumptions,
with particular facus on compliance with financial covenants
in the UK and liquidity headroom in the UK. Liquidity in Australia
provides short-term mitigation to low points in the UK on
downside scenarios. Cf these downside scenarios, the severe
but plausible scenaric described further below is the most
severe.

Key assumptions in the LOR Corporation Group's severe but
plausible scenaro include:

- lowerrevenue and frading volumes in the UK resulting in
approximately £854m reduction or dekay in LOR
Corporation Group revenue {a 13% reduction or delay in
revenue Qcross FY22 and FY23 compared to the
management case) with a £183m recduction in cash to
March 2023 [48% of net cash inflows to March 2023);

- Specific project risks and risks to cash generation inifiatives
{£63m cash inflow remaoved to 31 March 2023);

- Potential cost impacts of inflation on the curent portfolio
of projects (£19m cash removed to 31 March 2023) over
and above those that can be dealt with via
contingencies; and

—  Potential margin erosion and a potental negative impact
on the LOR Corporation Group's ability to deliver its
transformation activities, including cost reductions [a
further £35m cash inflow removed to 31 March 2023).

Even under the severe but plausible downside scenaric there is
no forecast bredich of UK banking covenants that waould result
in an Event of Default under the facility. Adeguate headroom
exists in Australia to provide liquidity for funding shortfalls in the
UK [£20m from April 2022 to September 2022 only).

The Board has considered the LOR Corporation Group's ability
to mitigate the potential impact of a downside scenario on
the LOR Corporation Group's fiquidity over the forecast period,
particularly in ight of the ocutperformance compared with the
business plan during the Covid-19 pandemic in the UK. The
mitigating factors that would be implemented by the LOR

Corporation Group Board in the event of a severe but
pkausible downside scenario, therefore, include those that
have enabled the business fo deliver such a strong liquidity
performance throughout the Covid-19 pericd. These
mitigating factors include the following:

—  Reduction in discretionary spend and non-gssential
capital expenditure;

- Further actions to manage working copital; and
- Reductions in headcount,

Qutside of the mitigations entirely within the LOR Corporation
Group's control, as summarised above, in the event of a
sevara deteroration in frading or other threat to the LOR
Corporation Group's liquidity or covenant headroom. the
Laing O'Rourke Corporation Limited Directors would dlso seek
to:

- Dispose of specific fixed assets;

-  Raise additional externai funding to supplement the
£35.0m RCF, including refinancing of LOR Corporation
Group plant and machinery assets; and

- Dispose of non-core businesses.

In addition to the Laing G'Rourke Corporation Limited Group
‘management case' and the severe but plausible downsice
case, the Directors have also assessed the extent of downside
that would be reguired for liquidity to drop below zero {a
reverse stress-test scenario). This considers the revenue
reduction required versus the ‘management case' in order for
licuidity to drep below zero during the peariod to March 2023,
This would require revenue to reduce or be delayed by £1.7bn
across FY22 and FY23 {a 25% reduction or delay in revenue
compared to the management case), with resultant loss of
rnargin, with no mitigafion. A similar reguction in revenue
would be required for a sustained breach of the minimum
liquidity covenant under the UK RCF.

The Directors have carefully considered the likelihood of the
above range of scenarios and remain confident that the LOR
Corporafion Group is wel-positioned to deliver its
management case forecast in light of the following:

- Against the background of Covid-19 uncertainties, the
oullook for the construction sectorin the UK is positive,
strengthened by the UK Government's substantial
National infrastructure Strategy. The LOR Corporation
Group continues to work closely with government in the
UK to support their investment agendas and, in particular,
as a strategic supplier in the UK in order to deliver
hospitals, schools and infrasfructure;

- Laing O'Rourke’s investment in developing a sector-
leading modem methods of construction (MMC)
capakility, its proven track record against a challenging
market backdrop. integrated delivery model, strong client
engagement, resiience to supply chain risk and robust
internal conirol environment ensure that it is weil
positioned 1o continue to win work;

- The cument order book for the LOR Corporaticn Group
remains strong at £7.9bn (cs at 31 March 2021) as a result
of continued work-winning success during the recent
Covid-19 pandemic period. The LOR Cormporation Group
now has 98% of its expected FY22 revenue either secured
or anticipated and 43% of its expected FYZ23 revenue is at
the secured, anticipated or prefered bidder stage; and
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DIRECTORS' REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2021

—~  Cash performance ot 30 September 2021 is above the
management case forecast for the LOR Corporation
Group.

Based on this assessment, the Directors have a reasonabie
expectiation that the LOR Comporation Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence and pay ifs
debts as they fall due in the pericd to 31 March 2023 and there
are no material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's going concem status, Accordingly, the Group
ncos confinued to adopt the going concem basis of
accouniing in preparng the Group's financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2021,

The financial statements do not, therefore, include the
adjustments that would result if the Group were unable to
continue as a going concern.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group's research and development expenditure of
£30.5m (FY20: £30m)] supports the development of
canstruction techniques to deliver guality, certainty, and value
for our customers.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
During the year, the Group confributed £0.1m {2020: £0.1m}
to its nominated charities.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Subsequent 1o the year end, the Group has refinanced its UK
faciiities, resulting i the full repayment of £108.7m of RCF/Term
Debt and the entering into a new £35.0m unsecured RCF with
an expiry date of 3 October 2023,

On 25 August 2021, the non-controlling interest held by
Garmham Services SA in Canal Harbour Development
Company Limited was acguired by the Group for €1,

DIRECTORS
The current membership of the Board is as set out on page 2.

HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELFARE

The Group is commifted to ensuring the health, safety and
welfare of all employees at work. All recsonable measures
have been taken to achieve this policy. Arangements have
been made fo protect other persons against risk te health ana
safety ansing from the activities of the Group's employees
when at work.

EMPLOYMENT POLICY

The Group continues 1o provide employees with relevant
information and o seek their views on matters of common
caoncem through their representatives and through fine
managers. Priority is given to ensuring that employees are
aware of significant matters affecting the Group's trading
position and of any significant crganisaticnal changes. The
Group treats each applicatian for employment, training
and promotion cn merit. Full and fair consideration is
given t¢ both disabled and able-bodied applicants and
employees. If existing employees become disabled, every
effort is made to find them appropiiate work and training is
provided if necessary.

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT STATEMENT

All Laing O'Rourke's UK employees are contracted by Laing
O'Rourke Services Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Laing
O'Rourke Ple. The Directors appreciate that employee interests
and needs evolve and change over fime and therefore they
value the need for continuous engagement with our pecple
to better inform their decision-making process.

There is close interaction between the board of the parent
company, Laing O'Rourke Corporation Limited., its Executive
Committees, and the boards of the group subsidiaries on issues
which may affect employees.

We continued during the period o use arange of
communication channels 1o provide employees with
relevant information and to seek their views on matters of
common interest, Prionty is given 1o ensuing that employees
are informed of material developments to the Group's
frading posifion and any significant orgonisational changes,

Our workforce is diverse ond spread ocross multiple locations.
We facilitate exchange of views between our people and
leadership teams through systemic employee surveys, Town
Halls, Breckiast Briefings, Roadshaws, our Infranet, Yammer (our
internal social media site). Away Days, our in-house media
channel 'LOR Live' and staff conferences. Directors also visit
project sites on @ regular basis.

Connecting effectively with our pecple over the period to hear
and understand thelir views becarme more impottant than ever
as the Covid-19 pandemic spread across the globe.
Managing the safety of our people was the priorfty for the
Directors and our Executive Committees as they managed the
busirness through the parficular challenges of the Covid-19
pandemic and & key facter taken into account in all
operational decisions regarding access to our project sites and
offices.

The Company pricritised communication, engagement and

suppart for our worktarce through many different channels

including:

+ Daily, weekly or monthly empioyee communications from
senior leaders;

=  Making foolkits available to manogers to ensure that they
could cascade consistent information o their teamsin o
personal way; ond

+ Increased interactive communication with our people
through extension of ourin-house media channel 'LOR Live'
to remote platforms, facilitating real time Q& As with
thoughts and opinions encouraged from ali staff.

STREAMLINED ENERGY AND CARBON REPORTING
The Group recognises the impact cimate change has on the
environment and society. The Group is commiffed fo
measuring and managing the carbon emissions associated
with our business operafions.

In the vear, the Group undertock energy qudifs in many of its
operations, as part of our compliance with the Govermment's
Energy Savings Opportunity Scheme ['ESOS').

The Group's cument emissions reduction projects are as foliows:

REDUCE SITE AND FACTORY FUEL USAGE
Continue o update and promcte site COz reduction
guidance (including use of welfare accommoedation)
ond continuing to raise staff awarenass:

- Continue to promote and build capakility in utilising
energy and carbon data to inform improvements on sifes.
Financial as well as environmental mehics have been
included in reporting to further Increase engagement and
commitment to meeting sustainability targets;

- Raise profile of guidance to ensure timely connection to
gnd, and optimise efficiency of on-site power generation
when required;
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- Continue to review plant fleet for upgrade opportunities - Conlinue to review property portfolio for upgrade
and contfinue to increase plant driver awareness; opportunities and support efficiency improvements,
- Seek opportunities to continue fo improve energy REDUCE EMISSIONS FROM TRAVEL
efficiency of Explore Manufacturing (and its kiln in —  Programme to improve driver behaviour;
particulary: - Promote advantages of longer lead-time order
- Improve energy governance across permanent and placements with projects to improve delivery loads and
temporary sites to reduce overall energy consumption, co-ordinction;

through the implementation of ISO 50001:2018; and

reduction targets and objectives, as required under ISO
50001:2018.

REDUCE ELECTRICITY CONSUMPTION
- Confinue with compubory installafion of AMR (Automated
Meter Reading) meters on all projects; and

efficiency; and

GHG EMISSIONS AND ENERGY USE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

FY21

- Promote the use of video conferencing technology to
- Support all sites with implementing specific energy displace business travel;

—  Fleet replacement programme to improve vehicle

Proactive review of telemetric data for company vans, to
identify and address operational bad-practice and
improve driver-awareness

Y20

Energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kwh)
Gas (kwWh)
Blectricity (kWh)
Transport fuels (kWh)
Other energy sources [Scope | & 2) kwh
Emissions from combustion of gas tCO%e (Scope 1)
Emissions from combustion of fuel for transport pumposes 1CO2%e [Scope 1)

Emissions from business fravel in rental cars or employee-owned vehicles where company is
responsible for purchasing of the fuel tCO2e (Scope 3)

Emissions from purchased electricity t1CO% (Scope 2, location-based)
Total gross emissions 1CC% based on the above

Total gross emissions fraom albove by unit turnaver/revenue [tCO%e/EM)

Methodology
Emissions from other activities which the company owns or confrols including operation of
facilities tCO%e (Scope 1)

Ernissions from hecat, steam and cooling purchased for own use tCO%e (Scope 2}
Ernissions from other activities tCO2e (Scope 3): Transport - other

Emissions from other activities tCO%2e (Scope 3): Electricity

Emissions from other activities tCO%e (Scope 3} Waste

Emissions from other activities tCO%e (Scope 3}): Water & Wastewater

Total other emissions 1CO2e

Total gross Scope 1. Scope 2 & Scope 3 emissions 1CO%

Total gross GHG emissions per unit fumover/revenue (ICO%/EM)

Third Party verification

71,730,161 103,112,048
6,991,955 5,810,762
17,873,000 21875702
20,238,946 31,697,587
26,626,259  43.727.997
1,392 1,070
3,604 5.383
1217 2312
4,167 5,469
10,380 14,234
745 139
ISO14064 Part 12018

and CEMARS

6,835 11,428

N/A N/A

251 1,024

358 466

758 13

299 315

8,501 13,346
18,881 27,580
13.56 26.99

Verified to ISO 14044 Part 1 2018

and CEMARS

The revenue used to calculate the intensity ratios is not that of the total Group; only UK subsidianes have beenincluded

Emissions hove reduced significantly compared to FY20 due to the impacts associated with Covid-19; predominantly working from

home and less employee fravel.
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ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS

An explanation of how the Group has regard to the need to
foster the Company's business relationships with suppliers,
customers and others, and the effect of that regard, including
on the principal decisions taken by the Company during the
financial year, is set out within principle 6 of the corporate
govermnance statement on pages 16 to 18,

DIRECTORS' INDEMNITIES

As permitted by the Articles of Associafion, the Directors

have the benefit of an indemnity which is o qualifying third-
party indemnity provision as defined by Section 234 of the
Companies Act 2006, The indemnity was in force throughout
the kast financial year and is curently in force. The Company
also purchased and maintained throughout the financial year
Directors' and Officers’ liability insurance in respect of itself and
its Directors.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPCNSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for preparning the Annual Report
and financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year. Under that low the
Directors have prepared the Group financial statements in
accordance with intemational accounting standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
and the Company financial statements in accordance with
United Kingdorm Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
{Unifed Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101
"Reduced Disclosure Framework", and applicable law).

Under company law, directors must not approve the financial

statements unless they are salisfied that they give a true and

fair view of the state of offairs of the Group and Company and

of the profit or loss of the group for that period. In preparing

the financial statements, the Directors are required to;

- selectsuitable accounting policies and then apply them
cansistently;

- state whether applicable international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2004 have been followed for the group
financial statements and United Kingdem Accounting
Standards, comprising FRS 101 have been falowed for the
company financial statements, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial
statements;

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasenable and prudent; and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concem
basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the group
and company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and Company ond hence for toking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
imegularities.

The Directars are also responsicle for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient fo show and explain the
Group's and Comipany's transactions and disclose with
reascnable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Group and Company and enable them fo ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

DIRECTORS' CONFIRMATIONS
In the case of each Director in office at the date the Directors'
Report is dpproved:

— spfaras the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Group's and Company's
cudifors are unaware; and

— they have taken all the steps that they cught to have
taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the
Group's and Company’s auditors are aware of that
information.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The auditers, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have
indicated their wilingness to continue in office and a
resolution for their appeintment wili be proposed at the
Annual General Meeting.

APPROVAL
This report was approved by the Board on 2 November 2021
and signed on behalf of the Board by:

R C BAKER
DIRECTOR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LAING O'ROURKE PLC

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OPINION

In our opinicn:

- Laing O'Rourke Plc's group financial statements and
company financial statements (the *financial statements'}
give a frue and fcir view of the state of the Group's and
of the Company’s affairs as at 31 March 2021 and of the
Greup's profit and the Group's cash flows for the year
then ended;

- the group financial statements have been propery
prepared in accordance with international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006;

- the company financial statements have been propery
prepared in accerdance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice {United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced
Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law); and

- the finoncial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006,

We have audited the financial statements, included within the
Annual Report and Financial Statements {the ‘Annual Report'},
which comprise: the consclidated and company statements
of financial position as at 31 March 2021: the consolidated
income statement. the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of cash
flows, and the consolidated and company statements of
changes in equity for the year then ended: and the notes to
the financial statements, which include a description of the
significant accounting policies,

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our auditin accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK} {“1SAs {UK)") and applicable law.
Our responsitilities under (SAs (UK) are further described in the
Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We pelieve that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and aporopriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

INDEPENDENCE

We remained independent of the group in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethicai
Standard, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities
in accerdance with these requirements.

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN
Based on the work we have performed, we have not
identified any material uncertainties relafing to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant
doubt on the Group's and the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern for a peried of at least twelve months from
when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that
the directors’ use of the going concem basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be
predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as fo the Group's
and the Company’s ability fo continue as a going concem.

Our responsibilities and the responsibiliies of the directors with
respect to going concem are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

REPORTING ON OTHER INFORMATION

The other information comprises all of the information in the
Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsibie for the
other information. Our opinion on the financial statements
does noct cover the other information and, accordingly, we do
not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and., in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or cur knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify an apparent matenal inconsistency or
material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures
to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the
financial statements or a material misstaterment of the other
information. if, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a matenal misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact, We have
nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we
also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the
Companies Act 2006 requires us clso 1o report certain opinions
and matters as described below.

STRATEGIC REPORT AND DIRECTORS' REPORT

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of
the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and
Directors' Report for the year ended 31 March 2021 is
consistent with the financial statements and has been
prepared in accordance with applicable iegal requirements,

In ight of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and
Company and their environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the
Strategic Report and Directors’ Report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LAING O'ROURKE PLC

CONTINUED

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND THE AUDIT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As explained more fully in the Statement of Direclors’
Responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with
the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view, The directors are alkso responsible for
such infernal contral as they determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or emmor.

In prepanng the financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's and the Company's
akility fo confinue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related fo going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the direciors elther
infend to liquidate the Group or the Company or fo cease
operations, or have no redlistic altemative but to do so.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qur objectives are to obtain recsonable assurance aout
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an quditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK] will
always detect a matetial misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material i, individually orin the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users faken on the basis of these financicl
statements.

Iregulanities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with
our responsibilities, cutined above, to detect material
misstaternents in respect of imegularities, including fraud. The
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting
imegulanties, including fraud. is detailed below.

Based con our understanding of the Group and ingustry, we
identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws
and regulations related to breaches of environmental
legisiation, heaith and safety legislation. data protection
legisiation, anti-bribery and coruption legistation, tax
legislation, employment laws and construction laws, and we
considered the extent to which non-compiiance might have a
material effect on the financial statements. We also
considered those laws and regulations that have a direct
impact on the financial statements such as the Companies
Act 2006. We evaluated management's incentives and
opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial
statements {including the risk of ovenide of controls), and
determined that the principal risks were related to posting
inappropriate jourmnal entries and management bias in
accounting estimates and judgements. Audit procedures
performed by the engagement team included:

- Discussion with management, internal audit and the
Group's intermnal legal counsel, including consideration of
potential instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulation and fraud;

- Assessment of matters reperted through the Group's
whistleblowing helpline and the results of management's
investigation of such matters:

- Obftaining legal lettars from the Group's external legal
advisers in respect of certain litigation and ciaims, where
considered hecessary;

-  Evalugtion of management's controls designed to prevent
and detectimregularities;

—  Substantive testing of journal entiies which met a defined
risk criteric, focusing on where and how fraud could arise;
and

- Challenging assumptions and judgements made by
management in its accounting estimates or judgements,
in particular in relation to contract accounting, disputes
and latent defects liabilities.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures
described above. We are less likely to become aware of
instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations that
are not closely related to events and fransactions reflected in
the financial statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a
marterial misstaterment due to fraud is higher than the risk of not
detecting one resutting from esror, as fraud may involve
deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery orintentional
misrepresentations, or through collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms
part of cur auditors’ report.

USE OF THIS REPORT

This report, including the opinions. has been prepared for and
only for the company's members as o body in accerdance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for
no other purpose, We do not, in giving these opinions, accept
or assume responsikility for any other purpose or to any other
person to whom this report is shown or into whaose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in
writing.

OTHER REQUIRED REPORTING

COMPANIES ACT 2006 EXCEPTION REPORTING

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to
you if, in our opinion:

- we have not obtained ajl the information and
explanations we require for our audit. or

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by
the Company, of retumns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

- certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by
law are not made; or

- the Company financiol statements are not in agreement
with the accounting records and refums.

We hoave no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

SIMON MORLEY (SENIOR STATUTORY AUDITOR)
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS AND STATUTCORY AUDITORS

LONDON, 2 November 2021
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 March 2021

Excephlional
Pre-exceptional terns
Total dems (note 4} Tolal
2021 2020 2020 2020
Note £m £m £m £m
Revenue 3 1.515.4 1.651.9 - 1,651.9
Cost of sces o L. . 0957 (legse) - _ [14838)
Gross profit 119.7 163.1 - 163.1
Administrative expenses (105.5) {121.3) (6.3) {127.6)
Other operating income , 7 74 05 - 05
Profit/(loss) from operations 21.4 423 {6.3) 36.0
Profit on disposat of joint ventures 13 25 - - -
Profit on disposal of property 58 - - -
Share of post-tax josses of joint ventures 4 (5.2) {5.9) - (5.9}
Profit/{loss} before interest and tax 5 24y 364 (63 30
Finance income 8 03 ‘r 0.2 - O.‘;I
Finonce expense $ _ {20.1) {(20.5) - EOQ'
Net financing expense e’y (19.4) - _(19.4}
Profit/{loss) before tax 4.9 16.8 {6.3) 10.5
Tax e S0 @ A 12 29
Profit/{loss) for the year 1.0 12.7 {a.1) 7.6
Altributable to:
Owners of the Parent 1.0 12.7 {5.1) 7.6
Non-confroling inferests - - - -
1.0 12.7 (5.1} 7.6
1. There were ne exceplional ilerms in the year ended 31 March 2021
The notes on pages 33 to 72 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 31 March 2021

Re-presented?

Pre- Exceptional R
excephonal items  Re-presented:
Tatal ftems inote 4] foial
2021 2020 2020 2020
Note £m £m im im
Profit/(loss) for the year 10 12.7 (5.1) 7.6
Other comprehensive {expense)/income:
Hems that may be subsequenfly reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange differences on fransiating foreign operations? (1.2) 31 - 31
mMovement in fair value of finoncial assets 4 oy - (o)
Other comprehensive {(expense)/income for the year,
netoftex ~ _ ~ _ _ _ _  _ _ W _ 9 2 _ - _ 2
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the year I I ) B & L 2 I
Attributable to:
Owners of the Parent 25 (1.0) 14.8 (5.3) 9.7
Nor-confroling interests . . _ &% _ - _ - _ - _ _-
{1.0) 14.8 [5.1) 9.7
1. There were no excephonal items in the year ended 31 March 2021,
2. Exchange differences on fransiating foreign operations has been re-prasented to inClude £1.0m previously presented as share of other comprehensive
axpense of iInvestiments accounted for using the equity method.
Items disclosed in the statement above are disclosed net of tax. The income fax relating 1o each component of other
comprehensive income is disclosed in Note 10.
The notes on pages 33 to 72 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 March 2021

Re-presented’ «

Restated?
2021 2020
Mate £m im
Assets
Non-cument assels
Intangible assets 11 35.0 39.2
Investments in joint ventures 14 6.9 9.1
Loans to joint ventures 14 8.0 153
Froperty, plant and equipment’ 15 468.2 611
Right-of-use assets! 16 157.6 177.3
Defered tax assets 23 312 340
Trade and other receivables? 19 01 -
Contract ossets? S o 18 302 44.3
Total non-curent assets . o . %37z _ 3823
Current assets
Inventories 17 9.9 2.5
Contract assets?3 18 87.5 67.8
Trade and other receivables? 19 100.9 100.5
Currenf tox assefs 9.4 5.0
Cash and cash equivalents - - _ 2618 2415
Total cument assets - . o 44 4243
Total assets 784.4 806.6
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Borrowings 20 {(177.4) {78.4)
Contract liabilties23 18 (254.7) (209.3)
Trade and other payables? 21 (410.7) (421.0)
Provisions 22 (7.0) {1.6)
Curent tox liobilifies _ - L B o 0.3 .3
Tolal current liabilities - o o . {s50.1) [(711.6)
Non-current liabilities
Bomowings 20 {97.6) [259.6)
Centract labilities? 18 (9.6) -
Trade and other payablesz S e 2 (9.8) (14.7)
Tolal non-current liabilities - - _ o {1s8) (2743}
Total liabilities - S - __(968.9)  [985.9)
Net liabilities {180.3) (179.3)
Equity
Share capital 24 0.2 0.2
Foreign curency translation reserve 25 {19.6) {18.4)
Fair value reserve 25 07 1.5
Accumulated losses . e L2585  (181.4) _ 162,46
Total equity atfributable to awners of the Parent (180.3) [179.3)
Non-controling interests - e 28 - =
Total equity (180.3) (179.3)

1. Right-of-use assets were disclosed as property, plant and equipment in FY20 and have therefore been re-presented for consistency with the presentation in

Fr21 which provides addificnal visibiity

2. Contract assels and contract hacilities were previously disclosed wathin trade and other receivables and frade and other payables respectively. They have

been re-presented in FY20 for corsstency with the presentation in FY21 which provides additional visibility

3. See note 2.1 for details of amounts restated in FY20 .

The financial statements were approved and autherised for issue by the Board of Directors on 2 November 2021 and were signed

on ifs behalf by:

R C BAKER Co T
DIRECTOR

The notes on pages 33 1o 72 form part of these financial statements.
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as ot 31 March 2021

Re-presented’

2021 2020
Note £m im
Assets
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 12 218.2 2182
Invastments in joint ventures 14 07 1.5
Loans to joint ventures 14 8.0 15.3
Right-of-use assets’ 14 728 81.3
Deferred tax assets . L S 1
Total non-cunentasgets ~ _ ___ _ __ __ __ _ 3043 _ 3208
Curnrent assefs
Trade and other receivables 19 2423 241.1
Cashandcosheauivdlents 61 ol
Total current assets - e 2424 2412
Total assets e 5467 5620
Liabilities
Cumnrent liabilities
Bomrowings 20 (144.5) {52.8)
Tfedeondotherpayables _ _  _ _ _ 2 (3832 _ (382
Total cuent liabiies s (370
Non-current liabilities
Bomrowings 20 {65.3) {212.3}
Trade and other payables  _~ _~ _~ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 20 _(uy _ @y
Total non-cunent kabilties _(654) (212.4)
Total liabilties {5} (5994}
Net liabilities ’ (48.4) (37.4)
Equity
Share capital 24 0.2 0.2
Fair value reserve 25 0.7 1.5
Accumulated losses and otherreserves 25 (498} = (30)
Total equity {48.4) [37.4)

1. Right-of-use assets were disclosed as property, plant and equipment in FY20 and have therefore been re-presented for consistency with the presentation in

FY21 which prowdes additional visibilty. There is no property, plarn and equipment in either FY20 or FY2) in the Company.

The Company loss for the financial year was £10.2m [FY20: Joss of £13.2m).

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 2 November 2021 and were signed

onits behalf by:

R C BAKER
DIRECTOR

The notes on pages 33 to 72 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the yvear ended 31 March 2021

Re-presented’

Restaled’
2021 2020
Note £m £m
Cash flows from operaling activities
Profit before tax 49 10.5
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 5 3.3 329
Impairment of assets 15 1.6 -
Profit on disposal of property. plant and equioment 5 (7.8) 0.4}
Profit on disposal of joint ventures 13 (2.5} -
Net financing costs 19.8 19.6
Research and development expenditure credil (7.2} -
Share of post-tax loss of joint ventures 14 52 59
Increqse in frade and other receivables’ {0.2) (11.2}
Decrease in contract assets! 143 88.3
(Increase)/decrease In inventories (0.4) 08
Decrease in trade and other payables and provisions' (15.3) (120.7}
increase in contract iabilifies! 549 200
Other S e E I 24
Cash generated from operations e - %68 481
Interest paid (11.4) {i1.4)
Toxpaid o L - _ 25 20
Net cash generated from operating activities S . 879 385
Cash flows generated from/{used in) investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (7.0} (6.3}
Purchase of intangible assets 11 (2.3 {(7.2)
Capital injections in equity investments 14 - (6.0)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets 19.7 27
Proceeds from disposal of joint ventures 25 -
Loans to joint ventures 14 - (1.4}
Loans repaid by joint ventures 14 7.3 02
Interest received on financial assefs held as investments - ) 0%
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities S 205 (170)
Cash flows from financing actlivities
Proceeds from bomrowings - 56
Repayments of bank loans (56.8) (100}
Lease principal repayments e o B (31.6)  (3C1)
Net cash used in financing aclivilies o o _ {s84) (345
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash eguivalents 200 (13.1)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year - o 2415 2546
Cash and cash equivalents af end of year - 5 2415
Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Cash at bank and on hand 2338 2130
Resticted cash deposits? e T 285
2615 241.5

1. Moverment in frade and other receivables and trade and other payables and provisions has been re-presented in FY20 to split out the movement in contract
assels and contract fiabiities for additional visioility. They have also been restated to comect for amounts which were incomectly classified as contract assefts,

See note 2.1.

The notes on pages 33 to 72 form part of these financial statements.
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. Resticted cash depaosits include £11.0m [FY20: £13.5m) relating to project bank accounts where amounts due to subcontractors are ring fenced. Payments
o subcentractors were made after the year end. There was alse £16 7m {FY20: £150m} of collateralised cash which is not immediately accessible.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 March 2021

Foreign
curency Total share- Non-
Share transiahon Far value  Accumulated holders' controling Total
capital reserve reserve losses equity interasts equlty
Note £m £m im £m £m £m £m
A1 April 2019 62 {215y 25 (1702]  {189.0) = {LBS’._(E
Profit for the year - - - 7.6 7.6 - 76
Other comprehensive income/ - 3.1 (1.0} - 2.1 - 21!
(expense) for the year, net of tax o ]
Total comprehensive income/(expense| - 3.1 (1.0 7.6 9.7 - 9.7
fortheyeor
At 31 March 2020 0.2 (18.4) 15 (162.6) (179.3) - (179.3)
. ST T - - T - - . 0 — . 0 — —/ - 1
Profit for the year I - - - 1.0 1.0 - 1.0
Other comprehensive expense for the ‘ - (1.2) (0.8) - (2.0) - (2.0)‘
year, net of tax ’ e L
Total comprehensive (expensel/income - {1.2) {0.8) Lo {1.0} - (1.0}
fortheyeor ol
At 31 March 2021 0.2 (19.6) 0.7 (161.6) {180.3) - {180.3)
Additional disclosure and details are provided in note 25.
The notes on pages 33 to 72 form part of these financial siatements.
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 March 2021

Accumulated
Fair valve losses and other Total
Sharg capital resenve reserves equity
Note im £im £m £m
AT April 2019 0.2 2.5 (25.9) (23.2)
Loss for the year and total comprehersive experse . nor_ 132 (142
Al 31 March 2020 0.2 1.5 (39.1) (37.4)
Loss for the year and fofal comprehensive experse . _(08) (102 (110
Al 31 March 2021 0.2 07 (49.3) (48.4)

Additional disclosure and details are provided in note 25.

The notes on pages 33 to 72 form part of these financic! statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Laing O'Rourke Pic (the *Company’] is a company
incorporated and domiciled in England & Wales. The addréss
of the registered office is given on page 2. The nafure of the
Group's operations and ifs principal activities are set outin
note 34 and in the Strategic Report on pages 3 to 18. The
conhsolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2021 comprise the Company and its
subsicianes and the Group’s interest in joint arangements.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Group consolidated financial statements are presented in
pounds sterling. rounded 10 the nearest hundred thousand
and include the resulls of the holding company, its subsidicry
undertakings and the Group's interest in joint ancangements for
the year ended 31 March 2021. The Group consclidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis under the histarical cost convention, as madified by the
revaluation of land and buildings (pricr to the adoption of
IFRS}. The principal accounting poficies, which have been
cansistently applied {see re-presentation statement below) for
all consolidated and equity accounted entities inciuding
subsidiaries and joint arangements are set out below.

The Group prepares consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards
in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006. The Company's financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard
101, 'Reducsad Disclosure Framework' (FRS 101). The financial
statements have been prepared under the histerical cost
convention and in accordance with the Companies Act 2006
as applicable to companies using FRS 101. As permitted by FRS
101, the Company has taken advaritage of the disciosure
exemptions available under that standard in relation to
financial instruments, capital management, presentation of a
cash flow statement. related parfy transactions and
comparative information.

In addition to the application of FRS 101, the Company has
taken advantage of Section 408 of the Act and consequently
its statement of comprehensive income [including the income
statement] is not presented as part of these accounts.

Representation of prior year comparatives
The following have been presented separately for FY21 in the
Statement of Financial Position in line with best practice:

- Right-of-use assets previously included within property, plant
and equipment;

— Contracts assets previously disclosed within trade and other
receivables; and

- Confract liabilities previously disclosed within trade and
other payables.

Two additional notes have also been included in these
consolidated financial statements as a result:

- Note 14 Right-cf-use assets; and
- Note 18 Contract balances.

Comparative information in the Statement of Financial Position
and in the relevant notes has been re-presented.

In the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, exchange
differences on translating foreign operations has been re-
presented in FY20 to include amounts previously presented as

share of other comprehensive expense of investments
accounied for using the equity method.

In ncte 30 the FY20 balances for subsidiaries outside the Laing
O'Rourke Plc Group have been included for comparative
PUIPOSEs.

These presentational changes have no impact on the Group's
profit/{loss). net asset position or net cash flows in the curent
financial year.

Restatement of prior year comparafives
The following have been restated in FY20:

- Prepayments and accrued income balances previously
shown as confract assets (notes 18 and 19);

- Conftract assets and centract ligbilities were incomectly
grossed up [notes 18, 19 and 21); and

- Financial instruments {note 27).

Comparative information in the Statement of Financial Position
and in the relevant notes has been restated.

Contract assets have been reduced in FY20 by £53.8m due 1o
a £40.0m adjustment between coniract liabilities and o £13.8m
adjustrment between prepayments and accrued income and
contract assets. Financial instruments have been restated fo
exclude contract assets and prepayments from trade ond
other receivables and to exclude govemment taxes and
contract licbilities from trade and other payables.

Going concern

The Board has carefully considered those factors likely to
affect the Group's future development, performance and
financial position in relation to the ability of the Group o
operate within its cument and foreseeable resources, financial
and operational. The Group has significant financial resources.
commilted banking facilities, long-term contracts ond a sfrong
order book. For this reason the directors continue to adopt the
going concern basis in prepanng the Group's financial
staterments.

Refer to note 2.24{e) and pages 19 1o 21 of the Directors’
Repaort.

Accounting Standards

The following standards, amendments and interpretations
became effective in the year ended 31 March 2021 and have
been adopted:

al  Amendmenis fo References fo the Concepfual
Framework in iFRS Standards

) Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3)
c] Definifion of Materal {Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8)

d)  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform [Amendments to IFRS 9.
1AS 3% and IFRS 7)

e] Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions {Amendment to
IFRS 16)

The effect on the consolidated financial statements of
adopting these new standards has been determined to be
minimal.

The Directors have considered recently published IFRSs, new
interpretotions and amendments to existing standards that ore
mandatory to the Group's accounting pefiods commencing
on or after 1 April 2021,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
Standards that are not yet effective and have not been
adopted early by the Group are:

a)  IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

b) Classificafion of Liabilities as Curent or Non-Current
{Armendments to [AS 1)

c) Reference to the Conceptual Framework [Amendments
to IFRS 3)2  Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

d) Property. Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before
Infended Use [Amendiments fo |AS 14)

e) Onerous Confracts — Cost of Fulfiling a Confract
{Amendmants to IAS 37}

f)  Annual Improvements fo IFRS Standards 2018-2020

g}l Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions {Amendment to
IFRS 18)

k) Interest Rote Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 [Amendments
fo IFRS %, 1AS 39, IFRS 7 and IFRS 16)

i} Amendments to IFRS 17 and IFRS 4, ‘Insurance confracts’
deferal of IFRS 2

The Directors do not expect the standards above to have a
matenal effect. The Group has chosen not to adopt any of the
obove standards and interpretations earlier than required.

2.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

a)  The Group financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and subsidianies controlled
by the Company. Subsidiaries are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to.
or has rights to, vanable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those retums
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which effective control is
fransferred to the Group and are deconsolidated from
the date control ceases.

The purchase methed of accounting is used fo account
for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group falling
within the scope of IFRS 3. 'Business Combinations’. The
corsideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of
exchange. Acquisition related costs are expensed as
incured. Identifiable assets acquired and kabilities and
contingent liabifities assumed in a business combination
are meagsured initially at their fair values at the acqguisition
date, irespective of the extent of any non-controling
interest, The excess of the considerction transferred over
the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acauired.
the difference is recognised directly in the income
statement,

The separate financial statements of the Company are
presented as required by the Companies Act 2006. The
Company has taken advantage of Section 408 of the
Companies Act, and cansequently its income statement
and statement of other comprehensive income are not
presented as part of these financial statements.

b)  Asscciates are operations over which the Group has the
power to exercise significant influence but not control,
generally accompanied by a share of between 20% and
just under 50% of the voting rights. Associates are
acceunted for using the equity method and are inifially
recognised at cost. The Group's investment in associates
includes goodwil identified on acgquisition, net of any
accumulated impaiment loss. The Group's share of Hs
associates’ pest-acguisition profits or losses is recognised in
the income staternent, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in the statement of other comprehensive
income. If the Group's share of losses in an associate
equals its investment, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it nas incured legal or constructive
cbligafions to make payments cn behalf of the asscciate,
in which case a provision is recognised.

¢} Under IFRS 11 investments in joint amrangements are
classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual ights and obligations of
each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of
each joint arrangement and has determined some to be
joint operations and some to be joint ventures, as
detailled in note 34.

i) The Group accounts for its share of the assets,
liabilties. revenue and expenses in a joint operation,
under each relevant neading in the income
statement and the statement of financial position.

i} Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method. Under the equity method of accounting.
interests in joint ventures are initiclly recognised at cosf
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the post-acguisition profits or losses and
movemenis in other comprehensive income. When
the Group's share of losses in @ joint venture equals or
exceeds its inferest in the joint venture {whichincludes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group's net investment in the joint venture), the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incumed obligations o make payments on behalf of
the joint venture.

d} Intra-Group balances and transactions togaether with any
unredlised gains arising from intra-Group transactions are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financiol
statements, Unredlised gains arising from fransactions with
jointly controlied entities and jointly controlled operations
are eiiminated to the extent of the Group's Interest in the
entity. The Group's share of unredlised losses is eliminated
in the same way as unregiised gains, but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impdairment.

2.3 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

Functional and presentation currency

ftems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's enfities are measured using the curency of the
primary economic envircnment in which each entity operates
(the functional currency’). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in pounds sterling, which is the
functional and presentation curency of Laing O'Rourke Plc.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(CONTINUED}
Transactions and balances
Foreign currency fransactions are transtated into the functicnal
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the setflement ¢f such fransactions and from the
transiation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign curencies are
recognised in the inceme statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets such
as equities classified as held for collect and for sale are
inCluded in the fair value reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all Group entities (none of
which has the curency of a hyperdinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are franslated into the presentation curency as
follows:

i} assets and Jiabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated af the closing rate atf the
reporting date:;

il income and expenses for each income statement are
fransiated af average exchange rates; and

i) allresulling exchange differences are recognised in the
foreign cumency transiation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translafion of the net investiment in foreign operations, and of
bomrowings designed as hedges of such investments, are taken
to other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is
partiafly disposed of, or sold, sxchange differences that were
recorded in other Ccomprehensive income are recognised in
the income statement as part of the gain or lass on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acguisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

2.4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and eguipment are reported at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and any recognised
impairment loss. Land s not depreciated, Where parts of an
item of property, plant and eguipment have different useful
lives, they are accounted for as separate items. Cost
comprises purchase price and directly attibutable costs.
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-ine method to wiite
down the costs of the assets to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Group owner occupied property 50 years
Other buildings 50 years
Plant, equipment and vehicles 2-15 years

Plant, equicment and vehicles include tower cranes, crawler
cranes and other specialist assets that are depreciated over a
useful fife of up to 15 years as well as smali fools and vehicies
that are depreciated over fwo fo five years.,

Certain land and buildings were revalued under previous
accounting standards. On transition to IFRS, the Group elected
to use the revalued amount as deermed cost.

Assets held under right-of-use leases are depreciated over the
term of the lease or the estimated useful life of the asset as
appropriate.

Gains and losses on disposal are recognised within cost of
sales, administrative expenses or profit on disposal of property
in the Income statement based on the nature of the assets
disposed of,

2.5 LEASES

The Group assesses whether a confract is, or contains, a lease
at the inception of the confract. A lease exists if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of anidentified asset fora
period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group recognises c right-of-use asset and a lease liability
at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is
inifially measured af cost and subsequenily deprecioted over
the lease ferm, The lease liability is measured af the present
value of the lease payments that are not poid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or if that rate connot be readily
detemmined, at the Group's incremental borowing rate. The
Group has elected to apply the practical expedient which
allows the Group to use a single discount rate for a partfolio of
leases with similar characteristics.

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for short term leases of less than 12 months and
lecses of low value assets (below US35,000). Instead, the
Cempany recognises the lease payments associafed with
these leases as an expense on a straight-ine basis over the
lease term,

2.6 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition
over the fair value of the Group's share of the net assets of the
acquired subsidiary or joint venture at the date of acquisifion.
Goodwill on acquisitions prior to 1 Apnil 2014 {the date of
fransition to IFRS} is camed at its book value (ofiginal cost less
cumulative amorisation) on that date, less any subsequent
impairment. This is in accordance with the transitional
provisions of IFRS 1. Goodwill arising before 1 January 1928 was
eliminated against reserves and has not been reinstated in
accordance with the transifional provisions of IFRS 3, ‘Business
Combinations'. Goodwill arising on the Group's investments in
Joint ventures since that date is included within the carrying
value of these investments. Negative gecodwill anising on or
after 1 Apnl 2014 is recognised immediately within profit from
coperations in the income statement. Separately recognised
goodwillis tested annually for impairment and camed at cost
less impairment losses. Goodwill is included when determining
the profit or loss on subsequent disposal of the business to
which it relates. Goodwill is dllocated 1o cash generating units
for the purpose of impairment testing.

Other intangible assets

Otherintangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impaimment losses. Amortisation is based on
the useful lives of the assets concemed, and recognised ona
straighi-ine basis over the following periods:

Computer software and licences 2-5 years

Developrent costs 4 years
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
{CONTINUED)
Impairment of non-financial assels
Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested for impairment annually. Assets
that are subject to amortisation or depreciation are reviewed
for impaimment or reversal of priorimpaiments when
circumstances or events indicate there may be a change in
the recoverable amount, For impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to cash-generating units by geographical reporting
unit and business segment. Assets are grouped af the lowest
level for which there are separately identfiable cash flows.

2.7 FANANCIAL INVESTMENTS

The Group has classified its financial investments as assets held
to collect and 1o sell which are recognised at fair value.
Changes in the fair value of financial investments classified as
held for sale are recorded in the fair value reserve within
equity. When these are sold, the fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the income statement.

Under the temms of a PFl or similar project, where the risks and
rewards of ownership remain largely with the purchaser of the
associated services, the Group's interest in the asset is classified
within investment in joint ventures as held to collect and to sell
under IFRS 2. These investments are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

2.8 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value derivatives are inifially recognised at fair value on
the date of the contract and are subsequently remeasured at
their fair value. Movements in fair value are recorded in the
income statement, together with any changes in the fair value
of the hedged asset or iakility that are attributable to the
hedged risk. The full fair value of a hedging derivative is
classified as a non-current asset or liakility if the remaining
maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 menths, and as a
current asset or ligbility if the maturity of the hedged item is less
than 12 months.

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the
cumulative net change in fair value of cash flow hedging
instruments related to hedged transactions thal have not yet
occured, together with any related defered tax.

2.9 INVENTORIES

Inventories, including kand and rekated development activity
thereon, are stated at the lower of cost and estimated net
redlisable value. Cost comprises direct matenals, direct and
subcontract labour, specific borrowing costs and those
overheads that have been incured in bringing inventeries to
their present location and condition. Net redlisable value
represents the estimated income less all estimated costs of
completion and costs to be incurmed in marketing, seling
and distribution.

2.70 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank and in
hand, deposits held at call with banks, project bank accounts
cantrolled by the Group. and other short-term highly liquid
investments with less than 90 days maturity from the date of
acquisition. Far the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents ako include bank overdrafts, which are
included in borrowings in the statement of financial position.

2.11TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables are initially recorded at fair value and
subsequently measured ot amortised cost as reduced by

allowances for expected credit losses and appropriate
allowances for estimated imecoverable amounts. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to the
income staternent line in which the provision was originalty
recognised. Trade receivabies include retentions within
contract assets and are classified as a cument asset, unless
recovery is due after more than cne year.

The Group has applied the simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses, which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance. To measure the expeciled credit losses, tfrade
receivables have been grouped based on days overdue.

2.12TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

2.13PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has o present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, where it is
probable that an outflow will be required to settle the
obligation and the amecunt of the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the present
value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation.

2. 14REVENUE RECOGNITION

The Group recognises revenue when it fransfers control over o
product or service to its customer, Revenue is measured af the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of
sales tax, for goods and services supplied to extemal
customers, and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. Revenus recognition is based on the safisfaction of
individual performance obligations and these obligations are
satisfied over time. Therefore, contract revenue and costs are
recognised by reference fo the stage of completion of each
contfract, as measured by the proportion of fotal costs at the
balance sheet date to the fotal expected costs of the
confract. Revenue from services and construction contracts is
recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract, as set out in the accounting policy for construction
and service contracts.

Where consideration is not specified in the contract with a
customer, and is therefore variable, the Group estimates the
amount of consideration to be received from its customer. The
measurement of varable consideration is subject to the
constraining principle whersby revenue will only be
recogmised to the exfent that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue will
not occur.

Additionally, where a modification to an existing centract
ocecurs, the Group assesses the nature of the modification and
whether it represents a separate performonce obligation or
whether it is @ modification to the existing performance
cbligation.
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2.14REVENUE RECOGNITION ({CONTINUED)

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the
period between the request for payment for the fransfer of
goods and services 1o the custemer and the payment by the
customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Group
does not adjust its fransacticon price for the time value of
money.

Rental income is recognised in the income statement ona
straight-ine basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives
are recognised as an infegral part of the total rental income.

Revenue on sale of private housing and commercial property
is recognised af a point in fime on legal completion cf the sale.

215 CONSTRUCTION AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

When the cutcome of individual contracts can be estimated
reliably, contract revenue is recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of each contract, as measured by the
proportion of total costs af the balance sheet date to the
estimated total cost of the contract. Contract costs are
expensed as incurred. Wnere multiple contracts are signed to
deliver a single commercial objecfive, as agreed at the outset,
such as inftial works and main works contracts, these are
treated as separate contracts, but are viewed as reprasenting
a single perforrnance obligation. Accordingly. revenues and
costs from these contracts are accounted for using the
cumulative catch-up method, with revenue recagnised based
on costs incurred as a proportion of total expected costs
across the confracts on an aggregated basis. Management
has made this judgement on the basis ihat work perforrmed
under such separate legal contracts constitutes a single
performance obligation as it does not consider that distinct
goods or services are provided as a result of work performed
under each contract from which the customer can derive an
identifiable benefit i.e. the customer only benefits from the
output of the confracts on a combined basis. This iudgement is
evaluated for every contract to ensure that the facts and
circurmstonces unique to ecch confroct are censidered and
revenue is accounted for appropricrtely.

Provision is made for ail known or expected losses on individual
contracts once such losses are foreseen. Incremental costs
required 1o satisfy contract obligations are considered in this
assessment. As noted in note 2.1 omendments to JAS 37, which
are applicable far the Group from 1 April 2022, require an
assessment of other costs directly relating to fulfilling contracts
to be included in the provision for all known or expected
losses.

Where costs incumed plus recognised profits less recognised
losses exceed progress bilings, the balance is recognised as @
confract assel. Where progress bilings exceed costs incurred
plus recognised profits less recognised losses. the balance is
recognised as a contract fiability.

Estimates of the final cutcome on each confract may include
cost contingencies to take account of specific Hsks within
each contract. Cost confingencies are reviewed on a regular
basis throughout the life of the confract and are adjusted
where appropriate. However, the nature of the risks on
projects is such that they often cannot be resolved until the
end of the project and therefore may not reverse until the end
of the project. The estimated final outcome on projectsis
confinuously reviewed, recovernies from insurers are assessed
and adjustments are made where necessary.

2.1 8 FULFILMENT COSTS

Pre-coniract costs are expensed as incured until it is virtually
certain the contract will be obtained and there is conbractuol
entitlement to revenue that will more than cover future pre-
construction costs and further bid costs pertaining to the
project in gquestion. From the point that costs are considerad fo
generdte or enhance the resources of the enfity, further pre-
confract costs are recognised as an assef and charged as an
expense over the perod of the confract,

2.17 PENSION COSTS

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes for
staff and Oirectors. The confributions paid by the Group and
the employees are invested in the pension fund within 30 days
following deduction. Once the contributions have been paid,
the Group, as employer, has no further payment obligations.
The Group's contributions are charged te the income
statement in the year fo which they relate.

2.18 TAX

Tax expense represents the sum of the tax curently payable
and deferred tax. The current tax expense is based on the
taxable profits for the vear, after any adjustments in respect of
prior years. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in
the income statement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
also excludes items that are neither taxable nor deductible.
The Group's liability for curent fax is calculated vsing fax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date.

Defered tax is pravided on temporary differences ansing from
investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be
controlled and it is probable that the difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred taxes are not provided in
respect of temporary differences arising from the initial
recognition of goodwil, ar fror goodwill for which
amortisation is not deductible far tax purpeses, or from the
initicl recognition of an asset or fiability in a transaction which is
not a business combination and affects neither accounting
profit nor faxable profit or loss af the fime of the fransaction.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probkable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised. Defered tax
is calculated at the tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the bakance sheet date ond expected to apply
when the related asset is realised or liability settled. Deferred
tax is charged or credited in the income statement except
when it relates fo items charged or credited directly to equity.
in which case the defermed tax is also included in equity.

Defered tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right te offset cument tax assets against
current tax fiabilifies ang when the deferred tax ossels ang
liabilities relate to iIncome taxes levied by the same taxation
authorty an either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

Management perodically evaluates positions fokern in fox
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected 1o be
paid to the tax quihorities.
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2.19BORROWINGS AND BORROWING COSTS
Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recognised
initicilly at fair vaive net of fransaction costs incurred. All
bomowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost with the
difference between inifial net proceeds and redemption
value recognised in fhe income stafement over the perod fo
redemption.

Bomowing costs are capifalised where the Group bomrows
funds specifically for the purpose of acquiring, constructing or
producing a qualifying asset, in accordance with 1AS 23,
‘Bomowing Costs'. All other finance costs of debt, including
premiums payable on settlement and direct issue costs, are
charged to the income statement on an aceruals basis over
the term of the instrument, using the effective interest method.

Borowings are classified as cument liabifties uniess the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Changes in borrowings are assessed for modification or
extinguishment in accordance with IFRS 9, with a gain or loss
recognised in the income statement where required,

2205SHARE CAPITAL
Crdinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributabie to the issue of new
ordinary shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.21EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Excepfional items are defined as items of income or
expenditure relating to one-off events which, in the opinion of
the Directors, are material, generally not expected to recur
and unusual in nature or of such significance that they reauire
separate disclosure on the face of the consolidated income
statement in accordance with 1AS 1, 'Presentation of Financial
Statements’. An assessment is made of events occuring during
the year on both a quantitative and qualitative basis to
determine which events require separate disciosure because
they do not relate to the Group's underlying performance.

2.22INTEREST INCOME

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. When a loan or receivable is impaired, the company
reduces the camying amount to ifs recoverable amount, being
the estimated future cash flow discounted at the orginal
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on
impaired loans and receivables is recognised using the original
effective interest rate.

2.23 GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with all attached conditions and that the grant will be
received. Government grants are recognised in the income
statement over the period necessary to offset them with the
costs that they are infended to compensate.

2.24KEY JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY
The preparaticn of consolidated financial statements under
IFRS requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect amounts recognised for assels and
iabiliies at the balonce sheet date and the amounts of
revenue and the expenses incured during the reported
period, Actual outcomes may therefore differ from these

estimates and assumptions. The estimates and assumptions
that have the most significant impact on the canying value of
assefs and liabilities of the Group within the next financial year
ore detailed as follows:

a) Revenue and margin recognition (judgement and
estimate)

The Group's revenue recognition and margin recognition

policies, which are sef out in notes 2.14 and Z.15, are central to

the way the Group values the work it nas camed out in each

financial year and have been consistently applied.

Across the Group mare than 144 censtruction contracts (FY20:
142) were income generating during the year. Of these, 11
(FY20: seven) individually had an impact of £5.0m or greater
on operating profit.

The economic outcomes of construction contracts are
principally determined by the contractual temms including how
revenue is calculated (which caninclude milestone
payments, progress-based payments, incendives and gain-
share or pain-share), the type of service being previded/risks
being managed (for example traditional contracting or
consfruction management) and the actual cperational and
financial performance versus forecast {at the time of contract
award or subsequently}. Other extemal factors can also have
a materal impact on performance, such as inflation, aspects
of design development, ground conditions and the
performance of subcontractors.

The key judgements and estimates relating to determining the
revenue and profit of these materal contracts within the
Group's accounts are:

- ldenfification of separable performance cbligations.

— Ensuring revenue recognised is highly probable, specific
attention being paid to the estimates of:

— recoverability of claims and variations from clients for
changes in condition/scope;

- revenue receivable in relation to achievement of goin-
share (or pain-share), milestones and other incentive
arangements;

- deductions for any domages levied by a client, e.g. for
late handover,;

— Percentage of completion of the project versus the plonned
cost programme;

- Achievabilty of the planned build programme;
- Forecast cost to complete (including contingencies); and

- Allowances for post-practical completion works (including
rectification of defects).

Each contract is treated on its merits and subject o aregular
review of the revenue and costs to complete by the project
team and senior management.

The level of estimation uncertainty in our construction business

is mitigated by:

— The processes in place regarding the selection of projects
during the bid/work winning phase:

— The level of experience of management and the Board in
delivering projects and accounting for the various types of
projects; and
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2.24KEY JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)
- The process in piace to identify and mitigate issues promptly.

Volatility is also reduced by the effect of managing a
significant portfolic of projects.

Nevertheless, the profif recognifion in our construction business
is a key estimate, due to the varety of contract ferms and the
inherent uncertainties in any construction project.

The estimation techniques used for revenue and profit
recognition on construction confracts require forecasts fo be
made cf the outcome of long-term contracts which require
assessments and judgements to be made on the recovery of
pre-confract costs, changes in the scope of waork, contract
programmes, maintenance and defects ligkilities and
changes in cost.

As at 31 March 2021, Covid-19 was reasonably expected to
have an impact on costs to complete across the Group's
paortfolio of construction contracts. After the balance sheet
date. management has performed an ongoing assessment of
forecast costs for construction contracts. Additional costs to
progress or complete projects, and associated revenue, as a
result of Covid-19 have been categorised as follows:

- Costs that do not confribute to the progression or
completion of a performance obiigation; these costs are
classified as inefficiencies and are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred and not reflected as part of the
stage of completion revenue recognition methodology (see
note 2.15);

- Costs associated with delay or additional measures
required, such as those due to social distancing and
additional personal protective eguipment, are included in
the costs to complete forecast insofar s they were
reascnably foreseeable at 31 March 2021; and

- Revenue associated with additional Covid-19 costs has
been recognised where it was considered highly probable
of not reversing as at the balance sheet date in
accordance with IFRS15 and the Group's policy on revenue
ond margin recognifion.

For the financial year ended 31 March 2020, management
made an adjusiment for one project where the impact of the
Group's share of the costs of delay or additional megsures
required, net of associated revenue, was significant (> £2m).
No adjustment is required for FY21.

There is one contract that the Group considers as materia)
sources of estimation uncertainty and, as at 31 March 2021
{consistent with 31 March 2020), the Group has included
estimated recoveries from the customer of £81.1m. relating
entirely to the first stage of work on this project. The Group
considers that the vajue of this contract includes potentiai
downside risk of £35.0m, being the difference between the
fotal estimated recovery and the amount received to date.
This recovery is recognised on the basis that it is considered
highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of
revenue recognised will not occur. A draft Deed of Vanation
{Deed) was agreed in principle with the customer in 2020 and
awaits final ratification by Central Government and signing by
the counterparties. final ratification is not yet complete as the
Deed ako incorporates further stages of the project, for which
no agreement has yet been reached by the parties and no
recovery has been recognised. The customer has made, and

cantinues to make, payments under the terms of the Deed
that relate to the fist stage of work,

Cur construction business revenue for the yearis £1.4bn {FY20:
£1.5 bn} with an associated margin of 7.9% (FY20: 9.1%). Should
margins reduce by 1% the impact of such & change across
our projects in delivery af the year-end would be an impact
on gross profif of £14.0m {FY20: £15.5m).

b) Disputes ond claims (judgement and esfimate)
Management's best udgement nas been reflected in the
acceunlting and repoerting of disputed amounts, legal cases
and claims but the actual future outcome may be different
from this judgement.

from time o time, the Group receives claims from
subcontractors that it must evaluate in estimating the costs to
complete an contracts and resolve as part of determining ifs
final contract positions. Management bases its estimates of
costs associated with such claims on its assessment of the
expected outcome of each matter using the latest available
information. There is inherent uncertainty associated with the
estimates made by management and any differences
between these estimated and the eventual amounts settled,
may be material. However, given the extent of subcontractor
claims ot any given point in time, as is common within the
sector. and as the quanfurm of amounts being claimed is not
atways known, it is not possible to provide any meaningful
sensitivities of the estimates that have been made.

c} Exceptlional items presentation (judgement)
Judgement has been used 10 determine the presentation of
excepfional iterms, which relate to matters arising that are
unusual and not expected to reoccur; there were no
exceptionatiterns arsing in FY21.

d) Accrued cosis in respect of rectification of defects
(esfimate)

There is estimation uncertainty in assessing accrued costs in

respect of the rectification of defects, which are based on

management’s best estimate of the cost 1o be incured as at

the reporting date.

In the year ended 31 March 2021, costs in respect of the
rectification of defects of £26.9m [FY20: £8.9m} were incurred
and debited to confract liabilities. As disclosed in note 18, as at
31 March 2021, the Group held liabilifies, included in contract
iabilities, of £74.2m {FY20: £54.7m} in respect of such defect
rectification. Due to the nature of these defect liabilities, which
can arise on projects where the consiruction work finished a
number of years ago, and where the Group may not have
access fo fhe site to fully assess the costs of rectification, it is
difficult to provide meaningful sensitivity disclosures of the
range of estimation uncertainty. However, as an indication of
the estimation uncertainty, a 10% movement in the balance
would have animpact on the consolidated income
statement of £7.4m, although actual movements may be
gredter.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
{CONTINUED)

2.24KEY JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

e) Going concern (judgement and estimate)

In preparing these consolidated financic) statements using the

going concermn basis of accounting, management has

considered the forecast future cash flows of the Group unger

a management case scenanc and several downside

scenarios (see pages 19 1o 20 of the Directors’ Report.).

Forecast future cash flows include the following areas of

judgement:

— Work winning for the Group;

— Canstruction activity including project margins and working
capital position;

Support of the supply chain in terms of product material,
labour supply and flexibility in payment terms;

Inflationary pressures;

- Disruption to the supply chain;
— Structural drvers for construciion work: and

— Possibility of increased Covid-19 related restrictions
Impacting construction.

2.25QTHER JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY
a) Tax (judgement)
The Group is subject fo fax in a number of jusdictions and
judgement is required in determining the provision for income
taxes including the recognition of deferred tax assets. The
Group provides for future liabilities in respect of uncerfain tax
positions where it is probable that additional tax may become
payakle in future periods and such provisions are based upon
management's assessment of exposures. Assets are only
recognised where 1T is probable that additional tax will
become payable in future periods and when the asset can be
utilised.

b) Impairment of goodwill (estimate)

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash generating unit to
which the goodwill has been dllocated. The value in use
calculation requires an estimation to be made of the timing
and amount of future cash flows expected to arse from the
cash generating unit, and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. The discount rate used, canying
volue of goodwill and further details of the impairment test
performed are included in note |1,

c) Covid-19 and Brexit {judgement and estimate)

In light of Covid-19 and the impact of Brexit, management has
considered other areas of judgement and estimation,
including expected credit loss provisioning (note 19), and
impacts on costs to progress or complete construction
confrocts, note 2.24(a).

As described furtherin note 11, the Group has also performed
an impairment test across its CGU with goodwill,

Management has concluded that any updates to the
estimates associated with these areqs of the financial
statements are not expected to result in significant change.

d) Climate Change (judgement and estimate)

In preparng the consolidated financial statements
management has considered the impact of cimate change.
Potential impacts of climate change. which include increased
intensity and frequency of weather events and stricter
environmental legislation, have been considered by
managernent, together with the group’s stated target of
becoming operational net zero by 2030 and developing plans
to achieve net zero scope 3 emissions by 2050 to the extent
these can be forecast at present. These considerations did not
have a material impact on the finoncial reporting judgements
and estimates and climate change is not expected to have a
significant impact on the Group's going concern assessment
0 March 2023.

Specific areas considered by management included:

- Estimates of the future cash flows used in the impairment
assessment of the canying value of goodwill where the
forecasts used include the impact of climate change to the
extent that these can be forecast at present [see note 11);

— Long-term contract accounting assumptions, such as the
forecast costs of @ project, the estimated costs to complete
and the dllowance for rectification works [see note 2,24a);

- The appropriateness of the estimated useful economic lives
of the Group's property, plant and equipment and right of
use assets (see notes 15 and 16) where no significant
changes are currently needed; and

- The recoverability of deferred tax assets recognised (see
note 23] in respect of camied forward losses in relafion tc the
UK cperations.

The Group continues to invest in new technologies and
product development including a project fo decarbonise
manufactured concrete components used in construction.
The costs of these proiects are cumrently being expensed as
incured.

226 COMPANY ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied by the Company
are the same as those presented in notes 2.1 to 2.25, to the
extent that the Group's fransactions and balances are
applied to the Company financial statements. The main
accounting policies which are not directly relevant fo the
Laing ©'Rourke Plc parent company financial statements are
those relating to consolidation accounting and the
recognifion and subseqguent measurement of goodwill. The
judgements and estimation uncerfainty policies that are not
relevant to the company are 2.24q, 2.24¢, 2.24d, 2.250 and
2.250.

The accounting policy that is additional to those applied by
the Group is as follows:

a) Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidicries are stated at cost less, where
aperopriate, provisions for impairment. Casts that are
incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition of
investmenfs are capitalised,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

3 DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE

The Group presents a disaggregation of ifs revenue according to the primary gecgraphicai markets and sectors in which the

Group operates.

There is no materal difference between revenue by origin and revenue by destination.

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services over time and at a point in time in the following geographical

regions and major lines:

United Kingdom Rest of Werld Total

2021 2021 2021

£m £m £im

Revenve . _ _ __ - _ _ _ 15149 05 15154
Timing of revenue recognition

At a pointin time 14.5 0.5 17.0

Overfime . _ 1484 - 14984

Revenue 1,549 a5 1.515.4

Conshructian  Manufacturing Plant Hire Services Totak

2021 2021 2021 2021 202

£m £m £m £m £m

Revenve _ _ _  _ __ __ _ _ _ _ __ 1388 120 792 84 15154
Timing of revenue recognition

At a point in time - 12.0 - 50 17.0

Overtme  _  _ _  _ _  _ _ _ _ _ __ _ _13%8 - M2 = 634 14984

Revenue 1,355.8 120 792 &84 15154

United Kingdorn Rest of world Total

2020 2020 2020

£m im £m

Revenve = o _lesle 03 16519
Timing of revenue recognition

Al apoint in time 7.4 0.3 9.7

Overtime o 16422 = 1.6422

Revenue 1.651.6 0.3 1.451.9

Construchien  Manufoctunng Plant Hire Seraces Tolal

2020 2020 2020 2020 2020

im &m £m £m £m

kevenve 0 _ _ _ _ __ _ 1385 49 84 21 146519
Timing of revenue recognition

At a pointin time - 49 - 4.8 9.7

Overtiwe _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 1585 - 814 223 16422

Revenve 1,538.5 49 81.4 271 1.651 %
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

4 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

2021 2020
£m £m
Restructuring costs - 2.4
Loss on iguidation of Henry ORouke o . - 29
Exceptional costs before tox - 6.3
In_co_m_eth creqir_orlexceptional iterns S - ___(1_.2)_
Exceptional costs after tax S - 5

There were no exceplional items during the year ended 31 March 2021.

RESTRUCTURING COSTS
During the year ended 31 March 2020 the Group incured £2.4m in relafion to redundancy costs. The restructuring costs in the:
Eurupe Hub related fo a redundancy programme which was a one-off, unusual event.

LOSS ON LIQUIDATION QF HENRY O'ROURKE
During the year ended 31 March 2020 the Group recognised a loss of £3.9m on the liquidation of this group entity.

5 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INTEREST AND TAX

Profit/{loss) before interest and tax is stated after charging/{crediting): Nole 2051:‘1 zgzn?
Staff costs ) 383.3 417.4
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 15 10.9 12.1
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 16 17.6 17.9
Short-term lease rentals and short ferm hires:

Property. plant and equipment 30 -
Amortisation of other intangible assets 11 28 29
Profit on disposal of plant and equipment {2.0) {0.4)
Profit on disposal of land and buildings {5.8) -
Foreign exchange losses /{gains) 0.2 (G.2)
Amount of inventories recognised as an expense 205 14.6
Accrued costs in respect of rectification of defective warks 249 89
Auditors’ remuneration {see below) 3.1 2.4

2021 2020
Auditors’ remuneration £m £m
Fees payable to the Company's auditors for the audit of;

The Company's annual financial statements and consolidated financial statements 28 22
_ The Company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation S .. 0.2
Total auditfees o o o S I 24
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and its associates for other services:

Services relating to taxation - _

Allotherservices . o S___ -
Tofalnon-audittees o - -
Total fees - 31 2.4

Included within the FY21 Group audit fee of £2.8m is £0.9m of Group audit fee ovenuns in respect of FY20.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

6  STAFF COSTS AND EMPLOYEE NUMBERS

2021 2020
Number of employees Number Number
The average monthly number of employees (including Directors) during the vear was:
Executives ‘ %0 88
Salared staff 3,388 3,512
Operatives - . 2854 3004
T - 6,332 6,704
2021 2020
Aggregate remuneration and related ¢osts, including Directors £m Em
Wages and salaries! 3333 3603
Socidl securty costs 352 39.5
Other pensiongests . S ¢ S P4t
o o 3833 417.4

1. During the financial year a government grant of £9.5m was received in respect of the coranavins job retention scheme and has been netied off
agairst salanes. socidil security and pension costs, wathin administrative expenses.

At 31 March 2021 £2.8m (FY20: £2.7m) was payable inrespect of defined contribution schemes and included in other payables
[note 21).

TRANSACTIONS WITH KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
The Group's key mandagement personnel during the year include the six Directors and ten ofher members (FY20: eight Directors
and thirteen other members) who served on the Furopean board during the year or ore directors of entities within the Group.

The compensation of key management personnelis as folfows:

202 2020
Em £m
Salaries and other shori-term employae benefits 4.3 4.8

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
The total remuneration of the Directors (included in key management personnel compensation above) was as follows:

2021 2020
£m £m
Salaries and other short-term benefits 54 3.7

None of the directors are aceruing benefits under a defined contibution scheme {FY20: none). No post-retirement benefits were
paid on behalf of Directors (FY20: £nil).

HIGHEST-PAID DIRECTOR
Amounts included above:

2021 2020
£m Em
Aggregate emoluments and other benefits 1.0 0.9
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

7 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2020

£m £m
Research and development expenditure credit 7.2 0.4
Rents received 0.1 01
Other operating income [ ' A -
74 0.5

The research and development expenditure credit of £7.2m is based on an assessment of recoverability from HMRC. The amount

for FY2) includes additional claims for prior year expenditure.

8 FINANCE INCOME

200 2020
£m £rn
Bank interest 0.2 0.7
Cther infeﬁs_fgngs_i_r_ni\gr income S A _i?_
0.3 0.9
9 FINANCE EXPENSE
2021 2020
£m £m
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts 14.4 15.2
Interest payable on lease liabilities 4.6 4.4
Other interest payable and similar charges - . 1 0.7
20.1 20.5
10 TAXATION
2021 2020
£m £m
Curmrent corporation tax
Cument tax on income for the year - -
Foreign tax
Current tax on income for the year 0.7 2.4
Adjustments inrespectofprieryeers . R L) o7
Total current tax 0.9} 31
Net origination of temporary differences — cument year 23 4.1
Adjustments in respect of prior years 25 {0.5}
impact of change in tax rate o S =3y
Total deferred tax ] - S o 48 = (07
Tax charge 3.9 29
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

10 TAXATION (CONTINUED)
The overal charge (FY20: charge) for the year of £3.9m (FY20: £2.9m] is explained relative to the UK statutory rate of 19% (FY20:
19%) below:

2021 2020
£m Em
Tolal tax reconciliation
Profit before tax 49 10.5
Tax af the UK corporation tax rate of 19% (FY20: UK 19%) 0.9 20
tffects of
- lower aoverseas tax rates {0.3) (0.5)
-~ ofher expenditure that is not tax deductible 1.2 1.3
— adjustments in respect of prior years 0.9 0.2
— tax effect of joint ventures - 0.1
— impact of change in UK tax rate - [3.8)
- non-recognised deferred fax asset 12 27
- otheradystrments = _ b9
Total tax charge 3.9 29

A total group tax charge of £3.9m [FY20; £2.9m) arises for the year on the total group profif of £4.9m [FY20: £10.5m). giving an
effective tax rate of 79.6% (FY20: 27.6%). The total tax charge for the year of £3.9m does not include any exceptional fax credit or
charge [FY20: net exceptional tox credit of £1.2m in relation to restructuring costs) [see note 4).

On 3 March 2021, in the spring budget, the UK Government announced that from 1 April 2023 the corporation tax rate would rise
from 19% to 25%. Given this was only subsfantively enacfed in fhe Finance Act 2021 on 24 May 2021, offer the Stafement of
Financial Position date, all UK defered tax assets and labilifies continue 1o be recognised at the existing 19% rate. Based on the
probable future taxabile profits against which termporary differences could be utiised at 25%. if this change had been
substantively enacted before the Statement of Financial Pesition date the value of deferred tax assets recognised at the
Staterment of Financial Position date wouid be increased by £6.3m.

In the spring budget 2020, the UK Govemment announced that from 1 April 2020 the corporation tax rate would remain at 19%
{rather than reducing 1o 17%. as previously enacted]. This new law was substantively enacted on 17 March 2020 and therefore all
UK deferred tax assets and liabilities, which were recognised at 17%. have been recalculated at 19% as at 31 March 2020, resulting
in ¢ £3.8m credit,

TAX EFFECTS RELATING TO EACH COMPONENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

. W20 B
T sﬁe-fax MNet-of-tax Betare-tax wet-af-tax
amount Tox expense amount amount Tax expense amouynt
£Em £m £m £m £m £m
Exchange differences on franslating foreign
operations (1.2) - {(1.2) 3. - 3.1
Fair value of held to collect and to sell financial
asets_ . _ _ _ oy - ey 0o - U0
(2.0) - (2.0} 21 ~ 2.1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

11 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer
sottware and Development

Group Gow:rlnlﬁ: ﬁceni‘: cuss:; Tc:::
Cost
A1 April 2020 24.7 354 50 85.1
Additions - 22 0.1 23
Transfer to property, plant and equipment - (3.7) - {3.7)
Exchange differences S - o5y - (0.5)
At 31 March 2021 247 334 5.1 632
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
ALY Apnl 2020 - 225 34 259
Amortisation for the year - 28 - 28
Exchange differences .- - T _ 8y = - (0.5)
Af3l march202y = 48 34 282
Net book value at 31 March 2021 247 8.6 1.7 350
Cost
AL T April 2019 24.7 322 3.4 60.3
Additions - 5.6 1.6 7.2
Disposals - {2.6) - (2.6)
Exchange differences - 0z - 02
At 31 March 202G o . 354 50 451
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 1 April 2019 - 22.9 2.4 253
Amortisation for the year - 1.9 1.0 29
Disposals - (2.6) - [2.¢)
Exchange differences - . - 03 - 03
Al 31 March 2020 e - w5 34 259
Net book value at 31 March 2020 24.7 12.9 1.6 392
IMPAIRMENT TESTS FOR CASH-GENERATING UNITS CONTAINING GOODWILL
The following units have goodwill

2021 2020

£m £m

United Kingdom S - 24.7 ] 24.7

247 247

The recoverable amount of goodwill attached to the cash generating unit is based on value in use calculations in accordance
with 1AS 36, Impaiment of Assets, The calculation uses cash flow projections based on four-year financicl budgets approved

by management and o perpetual growth rate of 2% based on industry data (FY20: 3%, discounted at the Group's estimated pre-
tax weighted average cost of capital of 12.9% (FY20: 14.1%). Budgeted gross margins are based on past performance and
management's market expectations. The weighted average cost of capital is an esfimate based on that of listed industry
compefitors, adjusted for changes in capital structures and specific considerations.

Sensitivity analysis, including the potentialimpact of Covid-19, Brexit and climate change, has been performed cn the goodwill in
relation to the CGU by changing the key assumptions appilicable. In the view of the Directors there is not a reascnably
foreseeable change in a key assumption that would trigger an impaiment charge.

Assumed revenue growth is 24% for FY23, 11% for FY24 and 9% for FY25. Gross margin is assumed fo increase from 10% in FY23 to
12% in FY25. Overheads are assumed to remain stable during the forecast pericd at approximately 3% of revenue.,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

11 INTANGIBLE ASSETS {CONTINUED)

AMORTISATION CHARGE
The amortisation charge in respect of computer software and licences and development costs is recognised in the following line
iterm in the conselidated income statement:

2021 2020
£Em £m
Administrative expenses 28 29
12 [NVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Subsidiary
Undertakings
Shares
Company Em
Cost
At April 2020 288.3
Disposal — Ll
A131 March 2020 and 31 March207 . _ 283
Impairment
AT 1 April 2020 (70.1)
Disposal - S _ =
Af 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021 L o L - 0.1}

Net book volue
At 31 March 2021 218.2
At 31 March 2020 2182

SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS SHARES
The Directors believe that the camying value of the individual investments is supported by their underying net assefs.

Al of the subsidiary companies have been included in the consolidated financial statements.

Certain subsidiones of the Group have opted to fake advantage of o statutory exemption from having an audit in respect of

their individual statutory accounts. Strict criteric must be met for this exemption to be taken and it must be agreed to by the
directors of those subsidiary entities. Listed in note 34 are subsiciaries controlled and consolidated by the Group where the
directors have taken advantage of the exemption from having an oudit of the entilies’ individual inancial staternents for the year
ended 31 March 2021 in accordance with Section 479A of the Companies Act 2004.

In crder to facilitate the adoption of this exemption, Laing O'Rourke Plc. the parent company of the subsidiaries concerned,
undertakes to provide a guarantee under Section 479C of the Companies Act 2006 in respect of thoese subsidiaries.

13 ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

YORKSHIRE LEARNING PARTNERSHIP PSP LIMITED

During the year the Group disposed of its interest in its joint venture Yorkshire Learning Partnership PSP Limited for £9.8m, achieving
a profit on disposal of £2.5m. The £9.8m consideration included the repayment of subordinated debt investment (£7,3m) and
equity {£2.5m).

PRIOR YEAR DISPOSALS
There were no acquisitions or disposdls in the prior year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

14 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Joint ventures
equity Laans to joint

investments ventures Total
Group £m £m £m
A1 April 2020 (27.6) 504 228
Disposals (1.4) (7.3) (8.7}
Fair value revaluation of financial assets {0.8) - (0.8}
Exchange differences L o (5 (02
At 31 March 2021 (28.5) 41.4 13.1
Share of results for the yoar after fax {5.2) - (5.2)
Net book value at 31 March 2021 (33.7} 41.4 7.9
Al 1 Aprit 2019 (25.7} 43.0 223
Equity investment purchases 60 - 6.0
Leans advanced - 1.4 1.4
Loans repaid - {(0.2] @2
Fair value revaluation of financicl assets (1.0} - (1.0}
Exchange differences . o N A LY 1z 0.2
Af 31 March 2020 S o {2171 504 28.7
Share of results for the year after tax o I 5. - (59
Net book value at 31 March 2020 (27.8) 50.4 228

The Group's share of joint venture investments and loans tc joint ventures is presented above. IFRS 11, Joint Arangements, and LAS

28, Investments in Associates, require the following presentation adjustments:

— where the Group has aready accounted for an obligation to fund net liabilities of a joint venture this is deducted from loans

rmade to the joint venture; and

- where the Group's okligation to fund net fiabilities of o joint venture exceeds the amount loaned, a provision is recorded (see

note 22},

The Group's investments in joint ventures are presented in the statement of financial position as:

2021

2020

£m £m
Investments in joint ventures 6.9 2.1
Loans to joint ventures 8.0 15.3
Provisions (note 22) _ i _ B G2 D -
7.9 22.8
Nao impairments of equity investments were brought forward at 31 March 2020 or charged in the year (FY20: £nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

14 {NVESTMENTS iN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
The joint ventures are shown in note 34. Each joint venture has share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which is held by
the Group. Each joinf venture is a private company and there s no quoted market price available for its shares.

Set out below is the summarised financial information for the joint ventures which are matenal to the Group., The information
disclosed reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements of the relevant joint ventures and rot Laing C'Rourke Plc's
share of these amounts. They have been amended to reflect adjustments made by the entity when using the equity method
including fair value adjustments and modifications for differences in accounting policies.

Heaith Monireal Private
Collective CIV Finance Explore
Limited Inifiatives Tansport  BYLOR Services
Partnership {PRIs} Limited Limited Other Total
2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 200
£m £m £m Em £m £m
Revenue 24 40 56.7 1568.8 - 2321
Depreciation and amortisafion - - {7.5) ~ - (7.5)
Ofmereperses 35 @5 _ (3 _(esn) - (@33))
Qperating (loss)/profit 10.9) 0.5 1.9 - - (8.5)
Netfinoncecosts ... - - _ @ _ - _ - _ 09
(Loss)/profit before tax (10.9) 05 10 - - (%.4)
Toxexpense . = _ _-_ (e _ - _ - _@%
(loss)/profitatertax o) 05 el - -_ (103
Other comprehersiveresutt - _ -~ _ - - _ - _ =
Tola) comprehensive (expense))lnc ome {10.9) 0.5 0.} - - {10.3)
Dividends received fromjoint ventores - - - = - _ =
Non-cumrent assets
Intfangibles - - 03 - - 03
Property, plant and equipment - - 378 - - 378
Other non-curent assets - 166.9 - - - 166.9
Cunent assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3.9 9.7 4.1 19.8 - 37.5
Ofercumentossets 189 70 28 73 01 A4
Total assets 178 183.6 55.0 271 0.1 283.4
Cunrent liabilifies
Bomrowings - - (3.0) - - (3.0
Other current liabilities (29.7} {6.9) (17.9) (27.1) (1.1} (82.7)
Non-current liabilities
Bomowings - (172.0) (22.4) - - (194.4)
Oternoncurentliobiies = - __ @) - _ 68y (4
Tolaliobiies ______ @7)__ (789 _ (44) _ @) _{e94) _(3515)
Net (lighilities)/assets 11.9) 47 8.6 - (69.3) (67.9)
Financial commitments - - - - - -
Capital commitments - - - - - -

* PFis relates to mvestmenis in joint ventures in Alder Hey and Yorkshire Leaming Partnerships. Yorkshire Learning Partnerships was disposed of in the year
{see note 13)

Please refer to note 34 for details of the place of business for material joint ventures.
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14 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Heallh montreal

Collectve CIV Explore
Lmited  Prvate Fingnce Transport  BYLOR Services
Partnership  Inihatives [PFis} timited Lirmited Ofher Total
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020
£m Im £m £&m £m Ern
Revenue 2.2 59 57.8 109.2 - 175.1
Depreciation and amortisation - - (2.0} - - (5.0
Ofher expenses 149 57) (488 (1092 -_ _umn
Operaling (loss)/profit (118 02 - - - (1.6}
Net finance income/{costs) 1.0 02 (1.7} - R
(Loss)/profit before tax S _FO_B] _ 0.4 a 7(? - - - {12.1}
Taxcredit - e - - 03
(Loss)/profit affertax ) 04 {1.4) - - (1.8
6Tfj_er_c__omprehensivwl_f__ o - - - _T____?______ - =
Total comprehensive (expense}/income (10.8) - 04 (1.4) - - {11.8}
Dividends received from joint ventures - - 0z - - oz
Non-current assets
Intangikles - - 0.7 - - 07
Property. plant and equipment - - 50.5 - - 50.5
Other non-curent assets - 278.9 - - - 2789
Cument assefs
Cash and cash equivalents 10.2 14.6 3.1 28 - 37.7
Other cument assels . ¢ e 114 67 07 402
Total assets _ 30.6 2945 5.7 165 07 4080
Cunent libilifies -
Bomowings - (5.3) 13.9) - - (8.9}
Other cument liabilities {31.6) (1.9) (15.4) {16.5) (0.8} (66.2)
Non-curent liabilifies
Bomowings - (281.1) (35.5) - - [318.8)
Other non-curent liabilities - - 23 =[50 C[(833)
Total liabilities S (316) _ (2883) _ (368)  {165) (518}  (4450)
Net(liobiifies)/assels no 62 8% - (510} 370
Financial commitments - - - - - -
Capital commitments - - - - - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

14 [INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Joint ventures
aguity Loans to joint

Company investmeglj; vemuéii Taialc:
ALY April 2020 1.5 153 148
Disposals - {7.3) (7.3)
Fair valee revaluation of financial @ssets o - {08
Net book valve at 31 March 2021 0.7 80 8.7
ALY April 2019 25 14 16.6
Loans advanced - 1.4 1.4
Loans repaid - (0.2) [0.2]
fair volue revaluation of finenciolassets Q0 _ - _ {0
Net book value at 31 March 2020 1.5 15.3 16.8

The Company's investment in joint ventures and loans to joint ventures is presented above. IFRS 11, Joint Arangements, and IAS 28,
Investments in Associates, require the following presentation adjustments:

— where the Group has already accounted for an obligation to fund net liabifies of o joint venture this is deducted from loans
made to the joint veniure; and

— where the Company's obligation to fund net liabilities of a joint venture exceeds the amount loaned, a provision is recorded
[see note 22].

The Company's investments in joint ventures are presented in the staterment of financial posifion as:

20 2020

Em £m

investments in joint ventures 0.7 1.5
Loans to joint ventuores . _ 80 153
' ] 8.7 148

No impdaiments of equity investments were brought forward at 31 March 2020 or charged in the year (FY20 £nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group owner Plant,

occupied Other land egqupmant

property and butlldings and vehicles Total
Group £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 Aprl 2020 21.2 12.6 129.4 1634
Addlitions - 02 6.8 7.0
Disposals {0.8) (0.6) {11.8) (13.2)
Transfer from intfangitle assets - - 3.7 3.7
Transfer from right-of-use assets o - - 2y @ n3
A1 31 March 2021 e 204 122 1512 1838
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2020 21 9.6 90.46 1023
Depreciation charge for the year 0.3 04 10.2 10.9
Impairment - - 1.6 1.6
Disposals - (0.8) (2.5} (10.1)
Transfer from right-of-use assets o _ - - 109 109
At 31 March 2021 ] _ 24 94 1038 1156
Net book value at 31 March 2021 18.0 28 47.4 48.2
Cost
At 1 Aprit 2019 208 12.8 1225 156.1
Additions - 02 6.1 4.3
Disposals - - (6.9) {4.9)
Transfer to ignt-of-use assets - - (12.0] (120
Transfer from right-of-use assets - - 20.1 201
Exchange differences o o 04 (0.4} (0.2) 62
A131 Morch2020 ] o ] 212 126 1296 163.4
Accumulated depreciation
ALY April 2019 1.2 9.6 85.8 96.6
Depreciation charge for the year 0.3 0.5 11.3 12.1
Disposals - - (5.4 {5.4)
Transfer to right-of-use assets - - (6.3) (6.3)
Transfer from right-of-use assets - - 89 89
Other - - (3.4) (3.4)
Exchange differences o - L _ 06 _ _ o5 (3 (02
At 31 March 2020 . _ _ 2.1 96 90.6 102.3
Net book value at 31 March 2020 1?2 3.0 39.0 §1.1

Right-of-use assets were disclosed within property. plant and equipment in FY20 and have therefore been re-presented for consistency with the presentationin

FY21 which provides additionai visibiity.
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16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Ltand and Plant &

buldings equipment Vehicles Total
Group £m im £m £m
Cost
A1 April 2020 102.6 1321 38 238.5
Additions 03 17.0 14 1387
Disposals (11.1) (4.6} - {15.7)
Tramsfer to property, plant and equipment - _ w9 - @9
At31 march2oer. . s 121.6 52 2184
Accumulated depreciation )
At 1 April 2020 10.5 49.1 1.6 $1.2
Depreciation charge for the year 8.4 78 14 17.6
Disposals 3.7) (3.2) - 6.9
Transfer fo property, plant and equipment - (osy - (109
A3 March2022 152 428 = 30 810
Net book vatue at 31 March 2021 76.8 78.8 22 157.6
Cost
At 31 March 2019 - 129.%9 08 130.7
Adjustment on adopiion of IFRS 16 821 2.8 C.3 85.2
At 1 Aprl 2019 82.1 132.7 11 2159
Aaditions 20.5 11.6 34 355
Disposals - (4.5) (0.3} {4.8)
Transfer from property, plant and equipment - 120 - 12.0
Tramsfer fo property. plant and equipment_ - ueh 4y @0
At3iMarch2020 lo26 1321 38 285
Accumulated depreciation
AL T Aprit 2019 - 46.0 04 48.6
Depreciation charge for the year 10.5 57 1.7 17.9
Disposals - (3.8) [0.2) (4.0
Transfer from property, plant and equioment - 6.3 - 63
Transfer to property, plant and equipment - {8.4) [0.5) (8.9)
Other - 3.4 - 3.4
Exchange differences - - __n - __ o0
At3IMorch2020 o _Jes w6 412
Net book value at 31 March 2020 §2.1 83.0 22 177.3

This is an additional note as right-of-use assets were disclosed within property. plant and equipment in FY20 and have therefore
pbeen re-presented for consistency with fhe presentation In FY21 which provides additional visibility.

Comparny
Cost o
At 1 Aol 2020
Oher
At3l March202n
Accumuiated dep;eciuﬁon

At 1 April 2020

Depreciation charge for the year
M3IMarch202!
Net book value at 31 March 2021

Land and
buldings
im

87.7

i
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Land and
buildings
Company £m
Cost
At 31 March 2019 -
Adjustment on adeption of IFRS 146 75.2
A1 April 2019 75.2
Additions 14.5
At 31 March 2020 89.7
Accumvulated depreciation B o e )
At 1 April 2019 - -
Depreciation charge for the year o - . 8.4
At 31 March 2020 - - N . 84
Net book value at 31 March 2020 81.3
17 INVENTORIES
Group 2%::. zgzrg
Development land and work in progress 23 4.4
Raw materials and consumables 7.5 50
Firished goods and goods for resale o - 0.1 o
9.9 9.5

Development land and work in progress at 31 March 2021 includes assets to a value of £0.8m (FY20: £0.9m) expected fo be
consumed after more than one year which, given the nature of these assets. is part of the normal operating cycle. Inventories
camed af net realisable value at 31 March 2021 nad o camying value of £nil {FY20: £2.8m).

Capitalised specific bomowing costs atfributable to qualifying assets and included in development land and work in progress were
£nil (FY20: £0.4m).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

18 CONTRACT BALANCES

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RELATED TO CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Canfract assets are made up of a portfolio of contracts and represent unbilled amounts and include amounfs arising from
changes to scope of works that have been recognised as revenue but not yet billed. Contract liabilifies result when cumulative
cash received exceeds cumuictive revenue on any particular contract. There are no significant one-off factors attributed to the
rmovements of these balances cutside of normal trading.

£m
Confract assets
AT April 2009 200.3
Transfers from contract assets recognised at the beginning of the year fo receivables {123.4}
Performance obligations satisfied in the year that have yet to be fronsferred to receivables 352
At 31 March 2020 1121
Transfers from coniract assets recegnised at the beginning of the year to receivables {43.9)
Performance obligations satfisfied in the year that have yet o be transfened toreceivables 295
At 31 March 2021 ' 97.7
Confract liabilities
AL Apnl 2019 [189.4}
Revenue recognised against contract liabilities at the beginning of the year 135.1
Increase due to cash received, excluding amounts recognised as revenue duning the year {155.0)
At 31 March 2020 (209.3)
Revenue recognised against contract liabilities at the beginning of the year 113.6
Increase due to cash received. excluding amounts recognised as revenue during the year (168.8]
At 31 March 2021 (244.3)
Restated Restated
[see note 2.1] (see note 2.1}
Assels Assets Ligbilities Licbilities Net Net
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
£m £m £Em £m £m £m
The ageing of contract assets/{liabilities) ai the
year end was:
Less than cne year 67.5 7.8 (254.7) {209.3) (187.2) {141.5)
More fhan ane year %2 43 (96 - 296 _ 43
' 917 112.1 (264.3) (209.3) (166.8) (97.2)

At 31 March 2021, contract assets include custormer retentions of £62.9m (FY20: £73.7m) relating to construction confracts of which
£30.2m (FY20: £44.3m) are non-curent assets.

At 31 March 2021, contract liabilities included liabilities across a number of legacy projects related to rectification works of £74.2m
{FY20: £56.7m). of which £9.6m [FY20: £nil) are non-current liabilities. During the year £9.3m cf the liability as at 1 April 2020 was
utilised for rectification works performed on legacy projects. Since year end, full and final settlerment has been reached on £24.0m
of these liabilities at amounts consistent with the provisions held at 31 March 2021, Of these remaining liabilities of £50.2m [FY20:
£56.7m). the Group does not in all cases have access to the site to fully assess the costs of rectification and, therefore, there is no
certainty as to the level of costs that will Ultimately be incured to setfle them. As described in note 2.24, these ligbilities are
therefore considered a major source of estimation uncertainty. Unless the timing of the rectification works is known and will occur
more than 12 months after the balance sheet date, these liatilties are shown as current.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

18 CONTRACT BALANCES (CONTINUED)

CONTRACT FULFILMENT COSTS
The Group has no fulfiiment costs within contract assets,
REMAINING PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS

Contracts which have remaining performance obligations expected to be settled through to confract completion are set out
below:

2021 2020
£m £m
Construction work in hand 4,517.4 31230

Management expects that £2,.0646.5m [FY20: £1,280m) in relation to contracts in piace as at 31 March 2021 will be recognised s
revenue in the next financial year.

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Re-presenfed

Restaled
[see note 2 1)
Amounts expected to be recovered within one year: 222;1 23532
Group
Trade receivables 4561 62.7
Less: allowances for expected credit losses (1.0 {1.7)
Amounts cwed by Laing O'Rourke Corporation Limited Group undertakings 13.7 133
Prepayments and accrued income 19.1 236
Otherreceivables - S 20 26
100.9 100.5
Company
Amounts owed by Group undertakings* 2415 239.8
Prepayments and accrued income 0.5 0.9
Other receivables o - S o o 63 04
2423 2411

*The Directors have assessed the recoverability of the balance, including by reference to the financial support the counterparty
has recelved from Loing O'Rourke Corporation Limited, the ultimate parent company, and on this oasis the Directors are safisfied
that no provision for expected credit losses is required in relation to this amount for the year ended 31 March 2021,

Amounts expected to be recovered after more than cne year:
Group
Trade receivables 0.1 -

Company
imounfs_ovzged___by Group undertakings o o ) - -

Total kade and other receivables-Grouwp o 1010 1005

Total rade and other receivables - Company 2423 241.1

Group -

Comprising

Financial assets (Note 27} 82.9 78.6

Other fincncial assets outside the scope of IFRS 7~ L B - 18.1 219
101.0 100.5

Amounts owed by Group undertakings are unsecured, interest-free, have ne fixed date of repayment and are repayable
on demand.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
Movement in the provision for impairment of trade receivables

2021 2020

£m £mn

Opening balance 1.7 Q%
Additional provisions recognised 0.1 08
Utlised during the year (0.1) -
Unusedamountsreversed . _ .. _ fn__ _ -
Closing balance 1.0 1.7

The maturity profile of the receivables and allowance for expected credit losses provided for above are as follows:

Allowance for

Camying expected

amount credit lossas

2021 2021

£m £m

Not past due 327 -
Past due 0-30 days 3.9 -
Past due 33-120 days 1.0 -
Past due 121-345 days 14 0.1
Morethenoneyear - _  _ _ . __ . __ _ __ 72 0%
442 1.0

Allowance for

Carrying expected

amount credit lasses

2020 2020

im £m

Not past due 45.3 [0.5)
Past due 0-30 days 10.4 -
Past due 31-120 days 1.2 C.1)
Past due 121-365 days 07 (0.2
Mare thanoneyear st e
62.7 {1.7)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

20 BORROWINGS

200

2020

£m £m

Amounts expected to be setfled within one year:
Group
Bank loans 153.2 50.4
Lease labiites o 242 280
_______ _ I I 7 S 7'
Company
Bank loans 139.5 500
Lease fiabilifies o . _ 76 28

o - I . - 52.8
Amounis expected to be seitled after more than one year:
Group
Bank loans 0.2 151.1
Legse liabifties - - o o 974 1085
__ o o L8 2396
Company
Bank loans - 137.1
Lease liabilities B o o . 453 752
- - S S el 2123
Tolal borowings — Group 2750 3380
Total borrowings - Company 2118 265.1

Obligations under leases are secured on certain non-curent assets of the Group with an original cest of £177.3m [FY20: £208.9m)

ond fotal net book value of £139.3m (FY20: £154.1m).

On 4 October 2021, subsequent to the year end, the Group refinanced its UK facilities, resulting in full repayment of its existing RCF,
Term Loan and Arangement Fee, which totalled £139.5m at 31 march 2021, and the entfering info of a new £35.0m RCF with an

expiry date of 3 October 2023. A £13.7m property loan was also refinanced with a new expiry date of 3 October 2023,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

217 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Re-prasented

{see note 2.1)
2021 2020
£m £m
Amounts expected to be setled within one year:
Group
Trade payables 129.5 1506
Amounts owed to Laing O'Rourke Corporation Limited Group undertakings 414 50.2
Other fax and social security 571 393
Other payables 254 26.5
Accruskonddefenedincome . ___ w13 150
4107 4210
Company
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 381.4 329.6
Ofther payables 03 22
Accrualsond deferedincome o __ 1% 24
383.2 334.2
Amounts expected to be setfled after more than one year:
Group
Trade payables 8.1 13.0
Accruak ond defered income . W 17
9.6 14.7
Company
Accruals and deferred income 0.1 a.1
0.1 0.1
Total frade and other payables - Group 420.3 4357
Total frade and other payables - Company 383.3 3343
Group
Comprising
Financial liakilities (Note 27) 356.5 3873
Other financial liabilifies cutside the scope of IFRS 7 638 48.4
420.3 4357

Al 31 March 2021, trade payables include subcontractor retentions of £41.0m [FY20: £45.3m) relating o construction controcts, of
which £8.3m (FY20: £13.0m) are non-current liabilities.

Amounts owed fo Group undertakings are unsecured, interest-free, have no fixed date of repayment and are repayable
on demand.
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22 PROVISIONS

2021 2020
Group £m £m
Joint venture provisions
AT April (1.6) (2.3)
Provisions created (5.4) -
Provisions utiised - - 07
A1 31 March S (7.0) (1.6)
Disclosed within:
Curent liakilities (7.0) {1.8)
Non-current labiliies - -
o (7.0) (1.4)

The Group provides in full for obfigations to remedy net liabilities of jointly confrolled entities in excess of amounts aready loaned.
Al 31 March 2021 these provisions armounted to £7.0m (FY20: £1.6m) which were measured in acceordance with the Group's
accounting palicies. Amounts provided are assessed based on judgements of confract costs, contract programmes and
maintfenance liabilities and are expected to be paid within one year.

23 DEFERRED TAX

The presentation of defered tax assets and defered tax liabilities in the statement of financial position offsets deferred fax assefs
against defemred fax iabilties wheare they relate to corporate income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and there is a
legally enforceable right to offset cument tax assets against cument tax iapilities. The notes below set out the Group's deferred tax
assefs and liakilities without applying such offsef. A summary table reconciling the defemed tax assets and defered tax liabilities in
the statement of financial position 1o the remainder of this note is also set out below:

2021 2020
£m i
Net deferred tax position at 31 March 2021
Defered tax assets N2 360
Assets Assels tiabilities Liabilities Net Net
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
£m £&m £m £m £m fm
Recognised deferred tax assets and kabilities
Group
Property, plant ond equipment 1.9 2.5 (4.1) (2.2) (2.2) 0.3
Other temporary differences 0.2 05 - - 0.2 0.5
Tox losses carmed forward 332 352 - - 332 352
Defenred fax assels/(liabiliies) 353 38.2 (41} (2.2} 312 260
The ageing of defered tax assets/ (liabilities)
at the year end was:
Less than one year 3.2 10.3 - (2.2) 32 8.1
More than one year 321 279 (4.1) - 28.0 27.9
353 382 {4.1) (2.2) 312 360
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23 DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Exchange and

At 1 Apnl other  Recognised in Recognsedin At 31 March

2020 movement Income aquity 2021

&m £m £m £m £m

Movements in deferred tax assels and liabilities in the year

Property. plant and equipment 03 - (2.5) - (2.2)

Other temporary differences 05 - {0.3) - 0.2

Tax losses camed forward 352 - {2.0) - 332

36.0 - [4.8) - 3.2

Exchange and
At 1 Apnl ofher  Recognsedin Recognised in At 31 March

2020 movemenl income equify 2020
£m £m im £m £m

Property, plant and equipment 2.1 - (1.8} - 03
Other temporary differences - - 0.5 - 0.5
Tax losses camed forward 33.7 04 1.1 - 352
35.8 04 {0.2) - 34.0

The recognised deferred fax assets include £33.2m which relate to camied forward tox losses in relation to the UK operations. The
Group has concluded that these defered tax assefs will be recovered using the estimated future taxable income which is based
on the approved forecasts prepared by management, These forecasts cover the next five years and take infe account UX tax
laws that, in broad terms, restrict the offset of the carmed forward tax losses to 50% of the curent year profits. The UK Group entities
have generated taxable profits this year and this is expected to contfinue in the future. The losses can be camed forward
indefinitely and have no expiry date, Changes in future profits willimpact the recoverability of the deferred tax assets.

UNRECOGNISED DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:

2021 2020
£m £m
Tax losses 0.7 567

The Group has unrecognised defermed fax assets of £60.7m {FY20: £56.7m] relating fo unused tax losses of £233.0m {FY20: £221.7my),
predominantly generated from Canadian operations which are equity accounted. The tax losses have ansen in the Group and
can be carmed forward fo future periods for use against part of future profits. The losses can be camed forward indefinifely and
have no expiry date. No defered tax asset has been recognised inrespect of these amounts as the future taxabile profits are not
probable and the constraints in using the lossés.

The group does not have undistributed eamings which, if paid out as dividends, would be subject to taxin the hands of the
recipient.

24 SHARE CAPITAL

Number of £1 Share capital
shares ssued £m
At 1 April 2020 and at 31 March 2021 167,108 02

All issued share capitaf is fully paid.
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25 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN TOTAL EQUITY

Fareign
cu?r:r:gy Retaned earnings/ Total
tramsiahion Fair Value {Accumulated shareholders' Non-corifroling
Share capital reserve Reserve losses) equity interests Tolal equity
£m £m £&m £m £m £m Em

Group
At 1 April 2019 02 [21.5) 25 {170.2)  (189.0) - i189.0)l
Profit for the year ‘r - - - 7.6 7.6 - 7.6 |
Other comprehensive | - 3.1 {1.0) - 2.1 - 21/
income/(expense) for the yvear, | !
net of tax | o S o
Total comprehensive - 3.1 (1.0} 7.6 97 - 9.7
income/(expense] for the year o o L
At 31 March 2020 0.2 _ (184) 1.5 (162.6) o (_173.3) - (73
Profit for the year i[ - - - 1.0 1.0 - 10 ;
Other comprehensive expense i - |
for the year, net of tax L= .2y (o8) - 2 (2.0
Tofal comprehensive
(expense)/income for the year e ) . X L D (%)) - (1.0)
At 31 March 2021 0.2 (19.6) 0.7 (161.8) (180.3) - (180.3)

FAIR VALUE RESERVE

The fair value reserve includes the cumulative net change in the fair value of assets held to collect and to sell until the investment Ts
de-recognised. together with any related defered tax.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the franslation of the financial staterments of foreign

operations.

RETAINED EARNINGS/{ACCUMULATED LOSSES)
Retained eamings/{accumulated losses) relate to the propoerion of netincome retained by the Parent Company less distributions.

Fareign Accumutated Total
currency Fair Value losses and other sharehelders’ Non-controlling
Share capitat transiation Reserve reserves egquity interests Total equity
&m £m £m £m £m im £m
Company

At 1 Aprl 2019 0.2 - 2.5 {25.9) (23.2) - (23.2)
Loss for the year and other - - (1.0} (13.2) (14.2) - (14.2)
comprehensive expense o L S o o =
At 31 March 2020 0.2 - 15 (39.1) (37.4) - (37.4)
Loss for the year and other - - (0.8) (10.2) (11.0) - (11.0)

comprenensive expense _ _ o e
At 31 March 2021 0.2 - 0.7 (49.3) {48.4) - (48.4)
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26 GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group had contingent hakilities at 31 March 2021 inrespect of:

GUARANTEES
2021 2020
£m £
Surety Bonds 522 55.4
Barnk Guarantees e e 398 397
920 951

£259m of the above guarantees were collateralised at 31 March 2021. As at 4 October 2021, following the refinancing of the UK
tacilities, £8.0m were collateralised with the balance of collateral released and no longer restricted. These guarantees may give
rise to liabilities in the Group if it does not meet its obligations under the terms of the guarantees. No material lesses are anticipated
inrespect of any of the above contingent liabilities.

CLAIMS

The Company has subsidiaries that nave a conventional contractor's liability in relation to consiruction and engineerning contracts,
including but not imited to guarantees, counterindemnities and guarantees in respect of their share of certain contractual
obligations of joint arangements, consorfia and other similar relationships. This liability includes various claims frorm fime 1o fime by
the Group or subsidianas against third parfies or ciairms by third parfies against the Group or its subsidiaries or joinf arangements or
consortia relationships in which the Group has aninterest. It is not possible fo estimate the financial effect of these claims should
they be successful. While the oufcome of these claims is uncertain, where it is appropriate fo do so, fhe direciors believe that
adequate allowance has been made within the forecast contract provisions.

JOINT ARRANGEMENTS
The Group has subsidiaries that have entered into jeint arangements under which the subsidianes may be jointly and severally
licble for the liakilities of the joint amangements.

27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk management is an integral part of the way the Group is managed. In the course of ifs business, the Group is exposed
primarily to foreign cumency risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The overal aim of the Group's financial risk
management policies is to minimise potential adverse effects on financial performance and net assets.

The Group's freasury department manages the principal financial risks within policies and operating parameters approved by the
Board of Direcfors and purchases derivative finoncial instruments where appropriate. Treasury is not a profit cenfre and does nof
enterinto speculative transactions.

27.1 FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK
Foreign cumency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The pound sterfing equivalents of the curency of the Group's financidl assets and llabilities, were as follows:

Pound sterling value of equivalent cumency (Em)

2021

201 2021 2021 2021 2021 Total

GBP EUR CAD HKD Other £m
Loans to joint venfures 8.0 338 - - - 41.46
Trade and other receivables 82.7 - 63 02 137 829
Cash and cosh equivalents 2612 o1 - - 0z 2615
Total financial assets 3319 337 6.3 02 139 384.0
Borowings (274.7) - - {0.3) - {275.0)
Todeondotherpayables  _ _ _ _ _ _ (2% B4 00 _©0 -~ (358
Net financial (liabilities) /assets {295.7) 0.3 6.2 0.2} 13.9 (245.5)
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27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
27 .1 FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK {CONTINUED)

Pound sterling valse of equivalent currency (Em)

2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 Total

GBP EUR CAD HKD Other £m
Loans to joint ventures 153 35.7 - - - 50.4
Trade and other receivables {restated!) 59.5 - 5.6 02 13.3 78.6
Cash and cash equivalents 264 47 - o1 _ _03 _ 245
Total financial assets 3112 39.8 5.4 03 13.6 370.5
Borowings (338.0) - - - - {328.0)
_Trode and other poygbl_gs_{re_sfqteq‘) o (3835 i&& o {_0.2) ) - _-___(@ﬂ
Net financial {liabilities)/assets (410.3} 3.2 54 0.3 13.6 {354.8)

1. Trade and other receivables and trade and cther payables balgnces for FY20 have been restated by £165.0m and £259. 1 mrespectively to remove assets
and liabilifies that do nol meet the defintion of a financial instrument per IFRS 7. Tnis has therefore reduced our exposure to the risks cssociated with financial
instruments compared wath the disclosura in the prior year.

If the foreign exchange rates that the Group is exposed to had changed adversely by 10% at the baiance sheet date, the results

for the year and equity would have decreased by £0.1m (FY20: £0.3m). This sensitivity analysis fakes into account the tax impact

and the forward exchange contracts in place.

27 2INTEREST RATE RISK
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. The Group is
exposed to interest rate risk in relation to some of its borowings. Borowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. The contractual repricing or maturity dates, whichever dates are eariier, and effective interest rates of borowings
are as follows:

Repricing/maturity date

Wwifhin one Baetween one Aﬂe'f two Effective

Total year  ahd kwo years years interest rate
£m £m £m £m T

Al 31 March 2021
Bank loans 153.4 153.2 02 - 2.44%
Lease obligations o s 242 194 78.0 _387%
2750 177.4 19.6 78.0 -

At 31 March 2020
Bank loans 201.5 50.4 137.4 13.7 7.97%
Lease obligations L . 1365 280 229 856 424%
3380 78.4 160.3 99.3 -

If interest rates had been 1 percent higher during the year, the results and equity would have reduced by £5.3m {FY20: £2.5m).
This sensitivity analysis takes into account the tax impact.
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27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {CONTINUED)
27 3LQUIDITY RISK

Prudent liquidity risk managernent involves maintaining sufficient cash and available funding to meet liabilities as they fall due. The
Group has procedures in place to minimise liquidity risk such as maintaining sufficient cash and other highly iquid curent assets
and by having an adequate amount of cormmitted credit facilities.

Subsequent to the year end, the Group has refinanced its UK facilities, resulting in a full repayment of £108.7m of RCF and Term
Debts and the entering into of a £35.0m RCF. The new facility has four covenants related to net debt o EBITDA, interest cover,
minimum liquidity and forecast iiquidity. If certain of these covenants are breached this will constitute an event of default on the
Group's borowing facifities. The Group takes a proactive stance in monitoring and ensuring compliance with covenanis and
reporting requirements. Procedures are in place to monitor and forecast cash usage and other highly liguid curent assets. This,
together with committed credit facilities, ensures that we have an adequate availakility of cash when required.

Maturity of financial liabilities
The maturity profile of the carying amount of the Group's non-current liabiiities including interast is as follows:

Trade and other

payables Bank loans Leases Total
(restoted') (restated’) {restated!) {restated")
£m £m £m £m
At 31 March 2021
within one year 410.7 157.0 254 5931
Between one and lass than two years 4.7 0.2 204 253
Between two and less than five years 38 - 362 400
Fveormoeyears A - &0 &1
. . 403 1572 1240 _ 701§
At 31 March 2020
Wwithin one year 4210 S4.4 293 504.7
Between one and less than two years 6.8 148.3 23.6 178.7
Between two and less than five years 6.2 148 36.5 575
Fveormoreyears .\ - #e 513
435.7 217.5 139.0 792.2

1. Trade and cther poyobles balonces for FY20 have been restated by £420.9m to include balonces within one year and remove contract liabilities. This has
therafore reduced our exposure to the risks associated with financial instruments compared with the disclosure in the prior year. Bank loans and leases
balances for FY20 have ako been restated by £54.5m and £29 3m respectively toinclude baances within one year.

27 .4 FAIR VALUES

Financial instruments camied af fair value in the statement of financial position are other investments and derivaiive financial
instruments. The following hierarchy classifies each class of financial instrument depending on the valuation technique appied in
determining its fair value.

Level 1: The fair value is calculated based on quoted prices fraded in active markets for identical assets or fabilities.

Level 2: The fair value is based on inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 thot are cbservable for the asset or
liability. either directly or indirectly, The fair value of derivative financial instruments is estimated to be the difference between the
fixad forward price of the instrument, and the current forward price for the residual marturity of the instument at the balance
sheet date.

Level 3: The fair value is based on unobservable inputs. The fair value of other investments is calculated by discounting expected
future cash flows wsing asset specific discount rates.

There have been no transfers between these categories in the cument or preceding year.
The following table presents the Group's financial assets and liabiliies that are measured at fair value at 31 March 2021,

Fair valye measurement 2021 Far value measurement 2020

Level 1 levei 2 levm Tohal tevel i Level Z Level 3 Tatal
£m £m £m £m £m £m im £m
Financial assets held to
colectondtosel - - 26 26 - - At 46
- - 2.6 2.4 - - 4.6 4.4

The fair value movements on held to collect and fo sell financial assets are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The Group recognised a £0.8m loss (FY20: £1.0m loss) in financial assets held to collect and to seilin
relation to PFlinvestments in joint ventures in the year.
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NQOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

27.4 FAIR VALUES {CONTINUED)
The canying and fair values of the Group's financial instruments at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 are os follows:

Resta‘ed
Carrying Restated Carrang
Fair value amount Far value amount
2021 2021 2020 2020
£m £m £m £
Loans and receivables 124.5 124.5 129.0 129.0
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost {634.5) (631.5) {725.3) (725.3)

1. Loars and receivables and financial liabiities measured at amortised cost for FY20 have been restoted from £259.0m fo £12%.0m and from £984.4m to
£725.3m to remove assets and iabilhes that do not meet the defirition of a financial instrument per IFRS 7. This has therefore reduced our exposure to the risks
associated with financial instruments compared with the disclosure In the prior vear.

The carmying and fair values of the Group's financial instruments were not materially different at 31 March 2021.

Loans, receivables and financial liabilties are valued af their amortised cost which is deemed to reflect fair value due to their
short-term nature.

27 S5CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group's objectives when managing capital are fo safeguard the Group's ability fo continue as a going concern in order fo
provide retums for shareholders and benefits for ather stakeholders and fo maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the

cost of capital,

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group regularty forecasts its cash position on both ¢ short-term and a long-term basis. Performance against forecasts is also
reviewed and analysed o ensure the Group efficiently manages its net cash/debt position.

Net cashis calculated as cash and cash equivalents less total borrowings (comprising ‘current and non-cumrent borrowings' as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position).

At 31 March 2021 the Group had net cash of £26.9m [FY20: net cash of £24.6m); see note 33.

28 ASSETS CHARGED AS SECURITY FOR LIABILITIES AND COLLATERAL ACCEPTED AS SECURITY FOR ASSETS
Financial assets piedged as short-term collateral and included within cash equivalents were £16.7m {FY20: £15.0m).

No financial assets have been provided o the Group s collateral [FY20: £nil).

29 FINANCIJAL AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Capital expenditure for property, plant and equipment, authorised and contracted for which has not been provided for in the
financial statements amounted fo £13.2m (FYZ20: £nil} in the Group.

The Group has committed to provide its share of further equity funding and suberdinated delbt investments in PPP (public-private
partnerships) special purpose entities ameount to £nil (FY20: £nil).

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

[DENTITY OF RELATED PARTIES
The Group has a related party relationship with its major shareholder, subsidianies, joint arangements and key management

personnel.

GROUP
The Group received income and incumed expenses with related parties from fransactions made in the normal course of business.

SALE OF GOCDS AND SERVICES PROVIDED TO RELATED PARTIES

302_1 o 2020
Income earned  Receivable at income egmed  Recewable ot
fn year year-end N year year-end
£Em £m £m £m
Subsidiaries outside the LOR Plc Group (note 19) 14.9 13.7 6.4 13.3
Joint ventures 28 03 1.6 0.4

Income earned in the year from subsidiaries outside the LOR Ple Group relates mainly to the management charges issued by
Laing O'Rourke Services Limited. The FY20 balances for subsidiaries outside the LOR Plc Group have been included in FY21 for
comparative purposes.

The receivables from related parties are not secured and no guarantees were received in respect thereof. The receivables will be
setfied in accordance with normal credit ferms.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

PURCHASE OF GOODS AND SERVICES PROVIDED BY RELATED PARTIES

. e
Expenses paid Payable at  Expenses paid Payable ot
in yeor year-end In year year-end
£m £m £m im
Subsidiaries outside the LOR Pic Group {note 21) 8.1 14 82 50.2
Joint ventures 347 4.4 29.3 5.4

The FY20 balances for subsidiaries outside the Laing O'Rourke Plc Group have been included in FY21 for comparative purposes.

PROPERTY LEASES

During the year the Group incurred expenditure of £1.8m (Fy20: £2.1m) with Mark Holding and Finance Limited and £6.1m [FY20:
£7.2m) with Steetley Investments Limited in respect of amounts due under lease agreements for premises cccupied by the Group.
During the year the interests in Mark Holding and Finance Limited and Steetiey Investments Limited were heid in trust, the
beneficiares of which are R G O'Rourke KBE and H D O'Rourke. At the year end the balance outstanding to Mark Holding and
Finance Limited was £nil [FY20: £nil) and fo Steetley Investments Limited was £nit (FY20: £nil). No amounts were written off in the
yvear by either party in respect of amounts payable under the agreements entered info.

LOAN

Suffolk Partners Corporation was the uliimate parent company of Laing O'Rourke Corporation Limited until 25 March 2021 and i
was o 50% shareholder of Augur Investments Limited until 4 October 2019, R G O'Rourke KBE and H D O'Rourke, who own 100% of
the shares of the ultimate parent company, are also beneficiaries of the frusts which ultimately own Suffolk Pariners Corporation.

Augur Investments Limited was a related party between | Apil 2019 and 4 October 2019 and there are therefore no related party
balances to report at either 31 March 2020 or 3) March 2021,

LOANS TO AND FROM JOINT VENTURES

At 31 March 2021 loans to joint ventures amounted to £41.6m (FY20: £50.4m) and loans from joint veniures ameounted to £nil (FY20:
£nil}. During the nommal course of business the Graup provided services to, and received management fees from, certain joint
ventures grmounting to £nil {FY20: £nil). Armounts due to and from joint ventures and associates at 31 March 2021 are disclosed
within investments in joinf ventures, frade and ofher receivables and trade and other payables in notes 14, 19 and 21 respectively.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
During the year the total remuneration of the Directors was £5.4m (FY20: £3.7m} of which pernsion costs amounted to £nil {FY20:
£nil), see note 6.

OISIN

On 2 June 2016, the Group seld an dircraft to Qisin Aviation {IOM) LP. During the current year the Group paid leasing cosis of
£0.1m (FY2Q: £0.1m) to Cisin Aviation (IOM) LP for the rental and £0.2m [FY20: £0.2m) for the operational services of the aircroft to
Qisin Aviation [Jersey) LP. During the year the limited portners of Cisin Aviglion [IOM) LP and Oisin Aviaticn {Jersey) LP were

R G O'Rourke KBE and H D O'Rourke.

SELECT PLANT HIRE COMPANY LIMITED
During the year. R G O'Rourke KBE and H D C'Rourke made no payment to Select Plant Hire Company Limited {FY20: £1.9m) for
the beneficial use of Company assefs. Amaounts owed as at 31 March 2021 are Enil [FY20: £nil).

31 ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY
The immedicte parent undertaking of Laing O'Raurke Pic is O'Rourke Investments Limited, a company registered in England
and Wales.

The ultimate parent company of Laing O'Rourke Plc was, until 25 March 2021, Suffolk Partners Corperation, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin isiands. On 25 March 2021 100% of the share capital of Laing O 'Rourke Corporation Limited was
sold o R G O'Rourke KBE (65.2%) and H D O'Rourke (34.8%). R G O'Rourke KBE is the ultimate controling party by virtue of his
majority shareholding.

Laing O'Rourke Corporation Limited is the parent underfaking of the largest group of undertakings to consolidate these financial
staternents at 31 March 2021. The Laing O'Rourke Corporation Limited consolidated financial statements are available af
www laingorourke.com

32 POSTBALANCE SHEET REVIEW
On 25 August 2021, the non-controling interest held by Gamham Services in Canal Harbour Development Company was
acaquired by the Group for €1.

On 4 October 2021, the Group refinanced its UK facilities, resulting in full repayment of its RCF, Term Loan and Arangement Fee
ond the availability of a new unsecured RCF with an expiry date of 3 October 2023. A £13.7m property loan was also refinanced
with an expiry date of 3 October 2023.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

33 RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW TO MOVEMENT IN NET CASH

Liabilities from financing activities

urrange:'\uer:\kl Cash and cash
Botrowings tees Leases Sub-total equivalents Net cash
£m £m £m £m £m fm
As at 1 April 2019 (197.0} 208 {45.7} {221.9) 254.4 327
Cash flow {5.6} - - {5.4) 27.0 21.4
New lease arangements - - {35.4) {35.4) - {35.6)
Repayments 10.0 - 30.1 40.1 {40.1} -
Impact of IFRS 14 adoption at 1 April 2019 - - (85.2) (85.2) - {(85.2)
Impact of IFRS 16 at 31 March 2020 - - 92.6 92.6 - 92.6
Other changes* o B9 76 T - B |
As at 31 March 2020 o (201.5) 28.4 (43.8) (216.9) 241.5 246
Cash flow - - - - 102.2 102.2
New lease amrangements - - (16.2) (16.2) - (16.2)
Repayments! 588 (6.2) 316 822 (82.2) -
Impact of IFRS 14 at 31 March 2020 - - {92.8) (92.8) - (92.6)
Impact of IFRS 14 at 31 march 2021 - - 796 79.46 - 79.6
QOther changes* - (8.7) X (0.6) ©n R )
As at 31 March 2021 Y ¢ 1 ) 30.8 (42.0) (164.6) 2615 96.9
* Qther changes include accrued inferest not yet paid and interest relating fo lease liabilities
1. Repayments Gf £56.8min FY21 include £356.5m related to core debt and fees.
The Group dafines net cash as cash less debt but excluding bank arangement fees and the impact of adepting IFRS 14.
The layout of the reconciliation of net cash flow has been re-presented in 2021 for additional visibility,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

34 SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

The Company has an interest either directly or indirectly in the share capital of the following companies:

Subsidiary undertaking

Principal achvity

Group Inferest
In ordinary
voling shares

Country of incorporation
or registration

Anchor Boulevard Limited

Biley Felds Limited

Cellence Plus Limited

Coventry Urban Regeneration Limitec
Crown House Technologies Limited
Eliis Mechanical Services Limited
Expanded Demaolition Limited
Expanded Limited

Expanded Piling Limited

Expanded Structures Limited

Explore Capital Limited

Explore Investments Limited

Explore Investments {No.1} Limited

Explore Living Balls Park Limited

Explore Living Limited

Explore Living Property Management Limited
Explore Monufacturing Limited

Glass Reinforced Concrete UK Limited

Inshtown Deveiopments Limited
John Laing Construction Limited
John Laing International Limited
John Laing (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd
Laing Abu Dhabt LLC

Laing Construction Limited
Laing Engineering Limited

Property investment company
Dissclved 12 July 2021

Recruitment company

Development management
Mechanical and electncal contracting
Non-frading

Dissclved 6 October 2020

Civil and structural engineering, piling and
demoalition

Non-frading

Civil and structural engineering
Helding company

Holding company

Holding company

Residential development

Residential development

Residenticl property management
Manufacture of construction products

manufacture and supply of glass reinforced
concrete building products

Residential development

Building contracting and civil engineering
Overseas contracting

Overseas contracting

Building centracting and civil engineering
Rolging company

Non-trading
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100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
49%

100%
100%

England and Wales
British Virgin lslands

England and Wales
England and Wales
England and wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
Englond and Wales

England and Wales
England and wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
Engiandg and Wdles
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wcles

Ireland

England and Wailes
England and Wales
Malaysia

UAE

England and Wales
England and Wales
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

34 SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT ARRANGEMENTS {CONTINUED)

fnferestin

ordinary voting  Country of incorporation

Subsidiary undertaking Principail ac hvity shares or registration

Laing International Nigeria timited Dormant company 100% Nigena

Laing Limited Building and civil engineering 100% England and Wales

Laing O'Rourke Canada Limited Building contracting and civil engineering  100% Canada

Laing O'Rourke Construction Limited Building contracting, civil engineering and  100% England and Wales
infrastructure

Laing O'Rourke Construction South Limifed Building contracting 100% England and wales

Laing O'Rourke Group Services Limited Dissolved 29 September 2020 100% Englond and Wales

Laing O'Rourke Haldings Limited Holding company 100% England and Wales

I aing O'Rourke Infrastructure Limited Civil engineenng and infrastructure 100% Englond and Wales

Laing O'Rourke Manufacturing Holdings Holding company 100% England and Wales

Limited

Laing O'Rourke Manufacturing Limited Manufacture of precast concrete 100% Englond and Wales

Laing O'Rourke Midlands Limited Construction of commercial buitdings 100% England cnd Wales

Laing O'Rourke Properties (Erith) Limited Investment property management 100% England and Wales

Laing O'Rourke Scotland Limited Buildling contracting 100% England and wWakes

Laing O'Rourke Services Limited Service company 100% England and Wales

Laing O'Rourke Utilities Limited Civil. mechanical and electrical 100% England and Wales
engineering contracting

Laing C'Rourke Wales & West Limited Building contracting 100% England and Wales

Maravale Investments (UK} Umited Managing investments in commercial 100% England and Wales
property

QO C Summers Limited Non-trading 100% England and Wales

O'Rourke Civil & Structural Engineering Limited  Non-trading 160% England and Wales

O'Rourke Civil Engineering Limited Civil and structural engineering 100% England and Wales

R O'Rourke & Son Maynooth Limited Residential development 100% [reland

R O'Rourke & Son Limited Holding company 100% England and Wales

Select Plant Hire Company Limited Plant hire and operations 100% England and Wales

Strongforce Engineering Limited Specialist concrete contracting 100% England and Wales

Sundera Holdings Limited Residential development 100% reland

Sycamore Properties Limited Property holding company 100% Bahamas

Vetter UK Limited Finished stone products 100% England and Wales
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

34 SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT ARRANGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Inlerest n

ordinary votihg  Country of mcorporahion
Joint venture Principal activity shares or registration
Alder Hey [Special Purpase Vehicle) Limited PFl accommodation operater hospital 40% England and Wales
Alder Hey Holdco 1 Limited PR accommodation operater haspital 40% England and Wales
Alder Hey Holdlco 2 Limited PR accommodation operator hosgital A0% England and Wales
Alder Hey Holdco 3 Limited PFl accommodation operator hosgital A% England and Wales
BYLOR Services Limited Construction of utility projects 50% England and Wales
Canal Harbeur Development Company Property development 507+ Ireland
Limited
CLM Delivery Partner Limited Non-frading 3% England and Wales
Explore Transport Limited Logistics 50% England and Wales
Health Montreal Collective CJV timited PA accommaodation operatar haspital 50% Canada
Parinership
New City Vision Holdings Limited* Holding company 5% England and Wales
Yorkshire Learming Partnership (PSP} Limited Disposed § October 2020 50% Engiand and Wales
Yorkshire Learning Partnership HoldCo Limited  Disposed 6 October 2020 S50% England and Wales
Yorkshire Learning Partnership ProjectCo Disposed 6 October 2020 50% England and Wales
Limited
$9231-9243 Quebec Inc jFlgccgmnlodoﬁon operator hospital ~ 50% Canada

* Treated as @ joint venture as a result of equal vohing fights.
** 0On 25 August 2021, the Group acauired the non-controling interest, see note 32.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

34 SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT ARRANGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Joint arangement

Prncipal activity

Participation

Country of Incorporation
or registration

BYLOR

COLOR Bond Street

East West Alilance

FLO — Northern Line

FLO — Thames Tideway Tunnel
Heathrow East Terminal Project
LM

M-Pact Manchester

SAIP Alliance

Civil engineering
Civil engineering
Civil engineering
Civil engineering
Civil engineering
Civil engineering
Civil engineerng
Civil engineering
Civil cngineenng

50%
50%
33%
0%
50%
50%
50%
60%
33%

England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales

The registered address of those registered in England and Wales is Bridge Place, Anchor Boulevard, Admirals Park, Dartford, Kent
DAZ 45N except New City Vision Holdings Limited whose registered address is 13 Newton Place, Glasgow G3 7PR and Alder Hey

(Special Purpese Vehicie) Limited, Alder Hey Holdco 1 Limited, Alder Hey Heldco 2 Limited and Alder Hey Holdco 3 Limited whose
registered address is 1 Kingsway, London WC2 6AN.

The registered address of those registered in lreland is 25/28 North Wall Quay, Dublin 1.
The registered address of Laing Abu Dhabi LLC is Sheikh Khakfa Street, Abu Dhabi, United Arcity Emirates.

The registered address of John Laing (Malaysic) Sdn Bhd is ¢/o Signet & Co $dn Bhd. 10th Fleor Tower Block, Komple Jalan Sultan

Ismail, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

The registered acdress of Laing International Nigeria Limited is 98 Awolowo Road, P.O. Box 53756, lkoyi, Lagos, Nigeria.

The registered address of Biley Fields Limited is Trident Chambers, P.O. Box 146 Road Town, Tertola, VG 1110, British Virgin Islands.

The registered address of Sycamore Properties Limited is Suite 200k, 2nd Floor, Centre of Commerce, One Bay Street,

P.Q. Box N-3944 Nassau, Bahamaos.

Listed below are subsidiaries controlled and consolidated by the Group, where the directors have taken the exempfion from
having an audit of their financial statements for the year ended 31 march 2021. This exemption is taken in accordance with

Companies Act Section 479A.

Subsichary undertaking

Company Registration Nurmber

Cellence Plus Limited

Coventry Urban Regeneration Limited
Expanded Structures Limited

Explore Capital Limited

Explore Investments (No. 1) Limited

Explore Investments Limited

Explore Living Property Management Limited
Glass Reinforced Concrete UK Limited

Laing Construction Limited

Laing Engineering Limited

Laing Ltd

Laing O'Rourke Manufacturing Holdings Limited
Laing O'Rourke Properties (Brith) Limited
Laing O'Rourke Utilities Limited

Maravale Investments [UK) Limited

C C summers Limited

C'Rourke Civil & Structural Engineering Limited
O'Rourke Civil Engineering Limited

R O’Rourke & Son Limited

Strongforce Engineering Limited
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6726412
6371949
5407121
5258424
5835462
5490297
5597437
6795454
3074000
1541508
3637584
6725938
4531115
4309417
2632144
0969372
1323856
2810023
2671992
3342392
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